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1 OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue Carbon offsets
Revenue has increased by Our renewable energy sites’
over 82% in the last 3 years carbon saving is over 822,600
from E390m in 2020 to carbon tonnes this year

£712m in 2077

Energy generation Number of loans

Cur renewable energy Over the year we
assets produce enough provided financing to, on
energy to power over average 182 borrowers

a million UK homes in the UK

Number of employees Number of sites
We employ over 1,690 We own 220 renewable
people energy sites spread

predominantly across
the UK




Chief Executive’s review

Cur Group was in td positicn comimg out of

aso
the lockdown response ¢ 19 ard our

to Covic-
DUSINEss Nas contnued 1o oeriorm rokbustly

throughout the year. This year has seen some

unforecasted growth i vallle of ceriain d'visions
primarily driver Dy tne ircrease in energy orces

ogetrer

Farn Trating | imitec ("tne Company” of t
Group”) targets consistent

Wit Its subsigiaries “thie
with a

fwlr 15

growth for skarebolders over the .ong term,

forus on steady and predictavle growih
carticularly impoertant during maorg crauergmg

ve a3 dvers fed and

econom.c conditions. We h

mature busiress pefting a Groug with moe than

12 years of rracirug risiory ana arnibon The Group

Fate

comprises more than 300 comgaries that have

operated i g range of seCiors Over Many years
gencratirg steacy long-term growth for our

sharcholders. We one

e 1n essentizl sectors that
we expect 1o perform steadily through marxet

volatility.
From th s secure Case we have been able & add

ncremental expansion and dn

measured way irough seexirg

CLT CoportLrties

ent sectors. Thgse 3

rew adjg ectors provida Js
witn & patform o continue to expand in lirig wtn
cur exising strategy. Today, our Group COMmprnses
energy, oroperty lending, heaitncare mfrastruciure,
fibre andg house building divis ons. We have grown
to be a sigmificarst preserce within our maost

astaplished sectors, procuc ng 4.2% of the UK

solar ereray ard 7% of the UK's anshcre w
Bunching a £3

mediLm term lending business thal facilitates the

prargy ouiout, ana £ srort and

construcron and mprovernent of ncmres

throughout the JK

The Company's share pnce gelivered 1C% growth
cover tre past 12 mont~s, well anead of our target
of 4% growt ceranumr Tre extr ary grove
s attrioutat.2 o o argy

cenehtted -om a sigrificant increase -0 lorg-tenm
erergy cnea ‘orecasts ard enerqgy ‘orward rates
over the gencd, r addition o nflaticr Trg

NCress the value of our energy div 0N was
SLUPPCr: d oy sold speranc-al pcm‘crrvump across

sll zectors and saome organ’'c growtn i newer

SEeCOrs

We rernam a supportive employer, with more than
1690 full-time slaff acrots the busi~esses that we
ocwr and operate, and indirect employment

provided for hurdreds more peope thraugh

contracts tnat we have In olace,

A reflection onour

year
FAQ4m from nvestars this yeaf‘

Tre financial

far the year show an

cperat ng pre ore tax of £42m against our

expected cutcorme of a srmal accounting profin. This
robust carformancs s a direct result of erergy

procuced oy the groug te rg sold for higrer prices

during the year Araost 60% of our pusiness
COrMorses renawane energy Jenacraing
as solar energy stes ard wind Farﬂws, wh oh provide
long-ternm revenee sireams Trase ae intertionaly
dversified ac
aQainst poot perfarmance Ir a spedfic se
cortnibdte owards

'0s5 & range o technolog es o mitigate

teady, predictable share price
growth, however, trer valuss ¢an suil Te rmpaciea

f“o"”ccum &nam eria! Ncreases Ir iong ter

erergy price forecasts a~d erergy forward rates

:1 opally over trelazt 15 miorths asﬂxgooa.
i3

ard seeks alterrative sourmes of energy as a resut of

the conf ot in Uxraine. Along win i ats

- trese

sed the vaue of the

-+

Year w.in

Fe acoutstion of sites in comrplerentary
junsaictions, as well 35

the UL commerca, and mausna: recftop so.ar
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Chief Executive's review

rmarkets and starting construc
ralia. At the start of the year we
ring acd:tional sites to our reserve power division

which brings us up to 26 sites in tetal [compared to
ten sites ‘or rrost of 2021) Thesa
performed ahead of expectations,
EBTOA of £26m (2021 E1rm) during

Uorn on a arge wing

farm i Ads added

sitas have
generzsting
thie year.

Cur successful and well-estabashed biomass
divisicn continues to perform well and has
delivered stable returris since asquisitan in 2015
Tnis year, i have been particularly pleased to see

strong performance at our newsest Diomass s'te in

Anglia, wnich was acqured in Aprl

Snetterton, East
2021, proving to be a valuanie sddition (o the
business During the year we purchased a Waste-

to-Energy fac ity currently under construction in

Ayrshire The facility has been in developmenrt for
trree years and w-ll be cagabie of proc si ng over
“85.600 wonnes par arinum of non-recyclable

househaold, ¢ ercial and indusinal wasie wh'ch
otherwise be sent to landfil or expaorted
Tris will generate 27 MWe of low carbon
naLgn to power 33,000 nornes. [twill be the frsf
large-scale, subsidy free waste-to-energy project in
western Scotiand and projected complaetion oate is

COmiry
walid
electrnicity,

in early 2024

Owver recent years, many of our enargy as
been under canstruction which has contributed to
our previousy raported aceounting losses. This is

typical
evern when ca

of sucn businesses during growth phase

sh generative, Decause 1nance costs
depreciation,
exceeded revenues. The divsion has now reached

and accounting charges, such as

our target size and sector gplit

Accoraingly thic year | am peased to repar: an
accourting profit before tax of £48m aganst our
budgeed smail accounting profit This shgntly
larger than expected profitiz due o the maturty of
the partfolio and higher erergy prices; resulting in
ncreased revenue frem our energy div sion as well
as arrincrease in inflat on as explained below),

s pd b s

Cur property ending business rma<es up around
27% of the Group and comprises short and med ur
termi secured leans to experienced oroperty
profess Thus establishcd part of our Dusiness
continued to perforrm w
of slow dowr guring Cowva-:9 whean we

£

onals.
eli, following a short penod

intenticnally choze to wrte fewer IGans Our average
loan book was 182 loans this year 1o JK borrowers,

operated at
conservative .can o valle leveis (beow 70%), N

Qur lensing division has always ¢

order that it maintzinz access o vauable security f
tnere is a reduction in property vaiues This strateqy
nas served the Group well since in
ago, and it has operated throuagn per
umes The

severa. Group is ta<ing a :aturaHy

caLlous aporoach when assess’ng ~ew lerding
opporiunities in light

outtock. To date, the G

of the changing econorm:ic
Group has lent £2 2bn of

property locans in 2070, sufferng

onrly £6n capial losses, This strong track record

since IFWCGDQICY“

is the result of cur carerul approach in this sectar,
orrprsing dscpl ned due diigence, conservat ve
loan-to-va.ue ratcs and an abiiny and willingness to
reduce actvity in this sector durirg ures of
ecoromic uncertainty, We will continue to agdopt
tris appreach throughout the coraing year

The hea thcare division makes ug around 4% of tne
Group and is broadly performing wei Our
retirerment villages business. Rangeford Haoldings
Limited ("Rangefora’) continued o sell apartments
at threg ses,
vilage in Chertsey, and acquired a fifth 1o
Cambridge during tre year. Sales at the
Chertsey site are expected o commence in 2024,

commenced construction of a faurth
cation

near L

wh le constructior at the Cambridge site s
expected to start in 2023 with the first saleg
commencing n 2026.

Our fibre divis on was establisnad in 2019 and
rerains an area of growth for the Grous, now

comgnsing of six operating busine Our
residential busiresses, Jurassic F\bre E " Fibre,
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Gigare: and Allpoints Fiore are Luslding ultrafast

"fibre 1o the prermises” broadband networks in

regions of thie LK wrhich nave neer overlocked by
larger oge
homes and susinesses across tre UK using CriyFipre

ators Giganet orovioes connectvty 1o

arndi Ooem'each infrasiucture and Virrifis a software
developmert company which has developed

prooreiary software to allow Inernet Seryv'ce
Provigers to sell connectivity over wholetale enabied
retworks, ncudng Alpoints Fbre Vorboss s the
UK's only decicated erte

o providing connectivty 7o busin

rorise fibre network 1o focus

In the year, our resigental finre businesse

s
continued G invest capital in expar.ding the;r

retworks in the

iorc Lounues, the S
Southwest of England, arnd ase now N‘boammg
custorrers 1o their netwaorks. generating ecurnng
evenues for the Group. Qur siate

o rmeet customor demand for

f-the-are
networks ere abie

higher broadoard spceds regqurred as a resiul of

-

1

ki

mere working-fran home and iNcreazed uag

video-orn-demana services In Londor, Vorboss nar

a.50 contirued to puild ard has installea over

505k of fibre witr a commitment 1o offer 10Gops

fbre 1o up w 25,0C0 businesses in Central Larndon

y 2027,
Whilst cur fibre div sio
for the rext 2-5 years we do not expec: it o repart

norertars in a growth grase

a™ acc

Jrtng proht

Towards tre ena of the year, we added a new
progerty daveioper 1o the Groug, with the accu'siion
of Ebvia Homes ("Elvia") for £85m. Euvia is an
establ-sred nouse buitder devecoing mid-rrarket
farn ly nomes ' London commutar towns anaG

s recresets avery evall part of tre

TOUG, We 2En e grow Il @ measurad Nay Over

Tre next Gve years w il an uwitirae ¢

w

500 nomes per year rcuang 700 righ ausity

ordaltie nomes tlivia has

3 5UCryg exist i

W

easershic o the bus ness:

EAT WG 378 KRy (S run

inflation and Interest rates
The higher raic
rag been respons

of inflation experierced tris year
cie for some of the

outnarformance zga
Compary's share crice =M 7

wh expactations ir tne
reasury for

ly to oe present untd 2025, as a

aigh rffaton s hke
r@suUit we expoct W0 recaive more revenue for the
energy generated withun cu” energy division, ard a
righer vaiue from tne govenment subsicies thar

5 benefit frore, Increas rg
g sheri pe

very Jitie efect

some of Sur ensrgy s
the va.ue of those st
rugh nflat &
on the rate atwncn tre Groug is expect

eriod of

T SuCh as qu_dJ has

ted to grow

Thes i pecausa the renawable energy <te:
cted future

tme they ae expeactaa T

W W

ve trer value from discounted nre,

cashfows over ite

ISRV - [y
20 years or more If the

cperae for, typ.cawy

cut.ook for long-term nflaaor were to increase, tre

TMpact on ou’ share once SNoLIG oe Positve

Decadse It waould increase the revenue eace of o

sad expectto make, ncortrastto a
relativey ©red cost bas

The expected rse in n
retury to nermal gite

ow rates The immediate impact of ths o
oJsiness s expectec 1o ke broadly neutral since
our Group 1= intenuanatly st
exgerierce signficant value erogion when interest
‘ges crangs We continue 1o take a cauticus
cing busnass whers the

approach withun our le:

nsi ng : interes

e5 are ‘el more closely and we
rave the abilty (o reduce the nuber of oans
we write, or ai'er ine nisk profie of ous loans
througn reducing loar to value ratics or pausitg
acbvity ir cette © Carts of Ine mar<et shoula that

feel gporopnats
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Current trading and outlook

Since the year end, the Croug has centinued o
perform steacily from ar operatoral perspectve
and ¢
saen snare pnce growth anead of target due 1o the

rlime witn our expectat'cns albeit we have

continued Norease N ong wrm energy ol
forecasts. Qur growth targets for the Group over
e medium anc icmg term rernair urcranged, and
W ColthNae o oLl o1 rndirlaining a diversificd
business t1at ‘s capable of delivering more
predictatye growth for sharenclders.

The recently annourced Electricity Gererator Levy
GL witnai the 2023 Sirange Bili wil Fave an
i the refurns generated from ¢

impac: o L energy

porifoic over the next O years This s furihar

discussed in tne group finance review on page 27

Qur property lending business continuess to
ceptoyment in thig
seclor sirce the yvear end We focus on short term
loans (cur average current lcan term is 17 morthe)
s N oudook

perform strongly, with increases

which erables us o adapt t© change
swiftly, we feel this s particularly ir'rportaﬂt ir the
current ecoromic climate,

Parformanrce in our rieaithcare divison continues
to ba stable, and we Conunue o remain positive
about the coporuriuas to imgrove nerforrmance o

this sector,

Since year end, we have continued c build out Gur
fibre networks, with constructon tracking in ine
with Cur expeciations We continue to review
opporturities for both organic and inprganic
suppcrf;nﬂ managerment eams

in delvering tris strategy.

growta our existing

in Decerber 2022 we have acguires the rights to

£25m of right o use mobie lcenses from Thrae
LK, thus making the first step towards becorrirg an

rmobsite virtuat network cperator

od over tme

y h ad, driven
e pace C

meeting tre objeciives of cur sharchol ders This
shiouid not be reaa as any ndicanor of a wholzsale
change in the sectors in which we operate, but a3 a
reflectior of the role plaved by the srategic
rmandate 11 protecting shareholders” interests.

Ciur mux of business areas has cev
and may evolve further over t
by the ovararchirg mgportance w

Uy mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our sharecholders.”
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Our business at a glance
What we da

Fern Trading Urnited {"Fern”) 1 the parent company

o rearly 370 sabsid arles ttogether tre "Croup™). Cur

Graup operatas
~ealthcare, '2nang, Sbre and hoose bu:ld?rﬂg. Caver

across five key arecs: enerqgy,

the past twelve years we have burl a carefuly

diversified group of operating businesses that are
wel postioraed to deiver [org-tarrr vaiue and

oredictanle Growth for our sharehciders

1. Energy division
We generate power rom sustainzkle scurces and

seil the erergy produced eithier directly to mdust: &,

consoemears or aaarge networks Mary of onr

erewaile energy siles quelty for goverrment

ncentves, which represert an add nonal scurce of
ncorne Ye have alao utised Gur cxpertise 11

renewabie emergy 16 constriat faciives for zgle or
ongoing operation. At yaar end the Group hiad

21 sies under corstrachern.

2. Healthcare division
We provide hornes ang esure fac lities

to our

ageng popu'ation, and private hospitals which
orovide higri-guslity neaithncare services across

ooerational sites in the UK

Solar, wind,

3. Lending division
We lend on 2 shorl ang reoum ierm, securaed

pasis to a arge nurber of property professionas

We aizo provide financing 1o enable otner business
to buid assed and ciner resdantial and

commercial properies.

4. Fibre division
We own and operate ﬁ‘bre oroadhand networks
across vanious areat of the UK We buid the

~ebworks ana connect tnem to homes and

ousinesses 1o £ro vide our custorrers wih ulira‘ass

fiore broadbardg

5. Home building division
t During the year, we successiully entered the howu

tD

cullcing sector, acguinng Livia Horres which has a
streng track record of developing homes ir g
sustainab:e marner Tre

cormzany 1s 3 ful-service
oroperty develooar, meanng it provides serviges

from the design. o tne engineearing and then final

CONSITUCUOT WO ensure tne delivery of auality

WGTKMIans1o,

. Property tending, Retirernent Uttrafast fibre <
latl)':gf{z;ias:s development vitlages, private broadband across Resﬁk;t?i?dart nouse
gas. financing hospitals the UK "9

reserve power

Dioerah s S
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Our business at a glance

The strengtn of our Group's strategy 5N botn 1tz P businesses with caompranensive business plans ard
operational giversity and the retur profile of these ; strong management teams, Thnis enables us to

businesses Cur ending business provides flexipiity ¢ continue to diversify our bus ness without

and strong returns over the short term, whele cur i compromisinrg on the guaity of our operations

energy, healtncare, fibre ard nome building Cver the past oree years, we have successfully

dwvisions offer vis b lity and stabilty of retums aver i entered the fibre orozoband sector and we now

he longer term, own 3ix companies with exeiting pars to deliver
i i ulrrafast broadband across the U< !

Tre scale of our busiress : ;

us to acquire large-scaie est :

wel as the cpporturity o enter rew sectars with

minimal nsk to the whole Group by selecting

Sector Spﬁt‘r ~ Healthcare 1%

Wind 22% —.

- Propenty 27%

Fern's sector
allocation
- Reserve power 2%
— Solar 1%

~ Flbbre 5%

- Healthcara 4%

Raserve power 6% - Landflt gas and biomass 9% ;

Cther 3% 7

M 8 Owning and operating assets 69%
BE Lending 31%

Sector split s given by value, as representer] on the company balarce sheet of Fern Trading Limted

i
i
:
i
i
i
|
i
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Our business at a glance

Where we operate
We are proud et the Dusiressas

within our Group maxe a pestve

contrbution o society, fram

generating clean energy o the ,‘\ !
creation of homes anc the grovis.on @

of qualty hezithcara infrastructure /l‘

Solar sites
Landfil gas fasilities

B.ormass power 5157003

Wwind farms |

;
Geserye powe: .a7ls :
Retrerrant viLages 1

OBE Y@=

Hospitals

4
Y

Fibre networks

A5 weve Qrown Cur expertse i1 these seclors £ t0 Use Gur nousy krowlesge to

take our expertise To @xciing opnartunile olar and w nd farms in

Cr
Australia, France, ireland, Poland and Friand.




Our business at a glance

Making a gifference
We are proud to operaie a Group that makes a
positve contribution o socety across the UK,
generating renawable energy, providira guaity
healtrcare infrastructare and retirernent livirg and
delivering high-speed broadband o underserved

areas of the country

Energy

We currently own 220 energy sites. oroducing

ZT750GW a year That's ercugh energy 1o power ovear

raillicn fomes

o

Giur combsnaton of tecnrowges so:ar, wind,

filt gas
ther well, nelping the UK w0

reserve power, bhiomass and and
complemeant eack o

rrest ts erergy targets irrespective of the westier

Tne rerr Community Fund is a social enterprise run
by the Group, which works o distribute community
funids generated from ou” wind farms. Trus yzar, the
Fern Community Fund has awarded E1 4 1o local
community groups, sunported 12 local university
students through our Studernt Scholarship Fund,

nd providec a winter fuel subs dy to 706 res.derts
who are local to the Group's assets.

Healthcare

Our regrement viliages provide nigh-guality,
cartermporary living spa itk 379
accommocat.on units currernily in o
schemes in vanous stages of development cffering
over 500 addit:ioral accornmaodation Linits

lace, anc

A friendly communty s at the heart of our
retiremerns villages, which 1s why in cur
developments we provide certrad faclites and a

hub of social activity for our residents

Lending
Tne leans we made durng tihe yezr have helped t©
fund the construction of student accommodation

and much needed resciential properties.

We continue to extend loans to 24 tax drivers and
flects o enable thern to use electric vehcles,
reddcing carhon emissions :n our capital

Fibre
Through our fbre divison we ae building out the
fibre optic breadband rietwork across the UR Four
of our rranagement tearns are focussed on
building out fibre optic broacdband networks for
residential customers and small businesses, and a
fifth 1s buslding a fibre network 1o deliver erterprise
connectivity, Our sixth is
th

a software development
= finre sector and
0 COmpanes

comeany Gperaing in

DFO\/EC "9 services (o our grou

Witnin thes division we have pians o create

o

network providing connectivity to over one miltio
ropertes in the next thres years, many of W"-M.h

are n small towns and villages that domn't currently

hiave access 1o inernst connectvity it for moden

ways of working and commurncating

Mot only are our fibre bus nesses bringing
conneciivity to underserved comrnunities, they are
also generating errployment opooriaenilies for
young indivicuals via training acagemies and
appre~ticeshio schemes, a

Telecoms, with one of our companies

and are drwing diversity in
having
laLnched a number of initiatives o recruil women
into the zector.

Home building

Our nome buiding division utl
proport'on of sustainanle tmoer frame construcaon
rethods and installs alr source reat pumps in zll

25 a nugh

3

properties, leading the way in this sector and

hielp ng reduce carbon emizsions
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Our strategy in focus

Oy businessss

Energy i generated higher returns this year than expecte
fhrough our energy division, the Group owns and P odue tc marrket conditions but crucially it fas the

operates e-ergy sifes whch supply gas ana I oootentia, to provae siable returns over the long
electricity irto the retwark, as weail a3 constraching {oterm This comb nation is key 10 our strategy to
renewals Of the 220 i balance ris< anc return across the range of Group

energy sites that we own arc operate, 154 provide aciivities to gecerate target relurns for sharénoldaoers.

renewable energy, cortribunng o tne Group's

~

oositicn as ore of the largest oroducers of “Qur energy sites generated over

3,750 GWh of power.”

renewable ecergy from commercal s

n the UK Energy sites are typicaily expected o
generate stable crofits for many years, as such P Due to the nigh-gualty energy sites we own, we
owring and cperatng these businesses ‘

(73]
5
a1}
B

!
=
[\l
]
it
<
o

are athe to secure long-terrm nancing from
to the Group seczuse of thelr pomwentia. to deever

manstrearn oanks a3t cornpetiuve ates o entbance !

oredictable orefits over the long terry, L of

our returns, winicn belps us to deliver the le

Rerewable energy sites gererate power from returrs our shareholders exgect,

siustainatle 3uuflces am seil energy produced edner 1 wiele cur renewable energy ocutness sarted Tfein
directly to large ndustrial consumers or o e the solar pﬂprw sector the Group has ouit
retwork Mary of our renewable encrgy sites alsc expertise across Giier adizcent technologics

qufl y for gover-ment incentves, which results i a

rwcluslr*g cnshicre wind, biomass ard lanafi gas, !

cortion of the gererated energy ter efiting from

supported by reserve power plants

e provice
rates tratf are "ocked in for a soecifed penod once backupn power to tre Nauonal Grid Tre Group
a quasfying site is operational anc accreditation ~as theretcre berefis from divarsification withn thrs

seen graned Tnig has recuced sorne of the mpact

cart of 11s bus'ness, s nce weaker cond tons for

of the veiatiny nlong-termr enargy nnce forec

eng iy produston fror one tecrnoogy often resud
As rew sites cuill ir the UK do mat gua.fy for Donstronger production elsewbere Tne Group alse
Ristor © goverrment neerives, we are seeing :

Pogans sgnificant benefit from its scale in this sector
rsites like the ones we Oown 1 52 oy bys ness s spread across

e

vastly redac’ng me nsk to Group profitamitty f ore ‘
lale

nd ogeratirg energy sites is 3 core par of 1 ¥ suffers an

Cwing a eraticonal d srustan
s strategy and currestly maxkes up aimost 60% of
the Group's net assets 1rus part of our Group has :

Did you know?

if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from |
London to Mexico City. Y
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Our strategy in focus

tn acdition to cur UK sites,
sites overseas, in jurisdict:ons that we urderstand

the Group is developng

well These presert ar attractive opportunity as they

buitd o our segior expertise in countnes at an

earlier ctage of renewable dﬂvek aprment Currenitly
we ooperate wind farms in Ireland and France and
sclar sites in Frarce and Australia. We have several
wind stes under constract-on in Poiand, Frarce

and Australa

Ouring the year we acquired nire reserve power

plants anid one erergy from waste site Following

construct.or, we scld twe wind
shiartly after tne year enc we also soid Larlington

Point, 2 targe solar sile :n Austrata,

Healthcare

Tarougn our Nealthcare div'sion, the Grouo
cperates in the private meaical and reurement livirg
sectars QOur retirernent living business, Rangeford,
owns and operates bwo reurement vilages in
Witshire and North Yorkshre and s currently

developing three further sites for future operatiors,

Cur privefe medical business,
and operates twao private nospitals in Kent ard
Hertforgshire, providing the very Sest level of care

in modern, well eguipped hospital facilit’es.

‘arms in Finland and

Ore Healthcare owns

Singe returning to normal workarg patterns we have
seen an N the number of patierts paying
for their cwn treaiment as they face tong waiting
I'sts for NHS treatmen:, Despite the lifung of
restrictions across the UK, Covd-19

NCresse

wigespread
cortnJdes to affect the acute care sectorwith a
stressed MRS and increazed infection control

measures that reman in place,

Lending

Lerding continues to be a core part of Qur busin
gnd has proviged the Group wh a profitable andg
r over the past twelve years
U Group mainly

Cash generative secto
This weil-established pact of
consisis of property wending, wh.aon provices
short-term financng to experienced profezsional
property developers buy-io-let lanalords seeking
bridaing finance; ano development finarcing,
which provides short end medicr: terrm hnancing
o compan a3

A key benefit of the scale of our Group and of the
buzsiress that we have

atlity to mitigate risk through having a large

putlt up i this sector is our

numizer of skort ard megium term loans spread
acress smali projects w indwidual borrowers, We
ore aft.vcy marage counterparty ris«<s through

ertaking careful borrower due dil gence, takng

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

SECUrly Over aisels t_\/Di

on a first charge basis
and maintaning conservative :oan-to-value ratios.
Not all loars will perforrm as expected and these
easures help to mnimise the impact of
performance 1ssues on an individaat loan. Tris is
further mitigated ihrough the value tnat we lerd to
relative to our tota!

on average across 182

ndividual borrcwers, ar book,
wHich is currer~tly spread

loars, with an averace individual loan of £2 3

Fibre division
Cur fibre division includes five operatiora
comparues bulding fiore networks in the U< and

one software development Company

artia. Fhre b

[hrough curr

Luilzing new physical Abre netwy

comrrunitias in tne UK and 20 far have buit

FEAR Y

fibre infrastruciure in underserved pa s of Gevon,
‘ommset, Dorset, Witshre, Hampshire,
and toe Homre Countes We are

cvar one mellion herres over the

Building thiese large networks involves conrecting

arge gatacenires and elephone exchanges in the

UK witn homes and busiressas, effectively
replacing the copper wires that were laid in the first

ralf of the 20t cantury, Jurassiz, Swar and

Giganet are vert.oally integratec, as they both owr
e the end

ternart

the fitre infraziructure and a'zc hav

custorner reiatonship as the service

orovider or (ISP Allpoints owrs fiore infrastructure
v

arnd wil orboarc oither

te sell connectvily to the ena customer.

Wwe are Duiiding a networ in
s-to-busiress ("52B7)

wly Gec: o busness

Through Vorpo:

London 1o sunply husines
ERLEIRnse Conre

custorrars, Vorboss nas installed over Z00km of
Hes in Lonaon since 2020 and has
graduci to

fibre o LC 23
recently launched a s ngle 1CGLPs
market, reccgaising that amb.rous Lonaon

susnesses will quickly require more thar the 1Gops

conrect vy theyve raied or o date

We rave sesn rapis growth in our hore dwision
snce 2018 andw
lo become a
The Groun expects Lo soend approximately £1on of
capital by 2025 to fulfil ts ou'ld plans and reach

More COMMUTItes in need o

exoect iz dvisiorto conirue

larger cart of our Dusiness over trre

of werafast broadbana

Home building
Cur new home bulaing cusiness, Eivias 2 full
service housebunder, acquinng and, deve oping e

W
-
D

and s.bseqguently seb ‘ng tre homes 'c

ndividual buyers Thesze sites inciu

rrarket and afforceke houses ang strive o geliver
~igh guality asprateral nomes. The ousiness s

growing fast with projected amnual tumover o
£250m and 600 houses

i the rext 2-3 yzars.

built per year forecasied

Sks o the Allpoints netwari
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Pawi Latham 7 oo w0

Faul 15 Chief Exacutive of Fern and is resporsiole for the day-to-day -unning of the
business ke s aiso a managng director of Octopus nvesimerts Limited (O
where he has worked sirce 2005 Of s a key suppler of resource ano expertise
te Fern Pauls dua: =oie ensures that this relationshin waorks effectively ara in the
best interess of Fern's shareholders. Paut has had various gererai maragement
ermal consdltirg roles across a number of seciors and brings with b

[+9)
3

o
Pad

awealth of iIndustry and business expenence

ith Witley .o Taerr s D

oitn 15 an associate professor of straiegy ard entreprersurshug at Londor

Busiress Schonl, Me also holds various ror-execulive directorshups and advisory
rowes at Figh growth and more mature companies. 'n his roie as neon-executive
chairman he s responsible for the effective coeraticn of the Board, as wel
as 43 governance. He onngs to the Fern business indegenaant cormmercial
expenence gamed from hnis tme 1N acadermia, private eguity investment,
consulting and various handsz-on coperational rales,

Pater Barlow w0 1o

Peter has over 30 years experience ininterraticnal firaricing of 'nfrastracture end energy
Az a senior executive for internaicnal Power, Peter was responsibie for arranging over
51Zbn of oroect ard corporate funding, as well as banking relat'onshps and treasary
actwties. e has spent over 20 years workng interratonally for HSEC Bank of
Amenca and Nomura, finarong acauisitions and greenfield proiects in the energy

and infrastructure sectors His combimation of Board-leve! financing and erergy
experence over nLmerous eneray sub-sectors, and his ali-round knowledge of
all the sectors in which Fern operates, adds significant value tc the operatior: of

the Board as well 35 its strategy formation and deploymert

Tirn Arthar oo 0 - w0l o Doy

Tim is a chartered accountant with mare than 25 years’ internatonal expenence
)

as a finance director of both public and private companies. Initialy he worked

for Frice Waternouse in Birmirgham and Chicago More recently ne was Chigf

Financial Officer of Lightsource Renewabls Energy Ltd, a global leader i the

funding, develcpment anc iong-term operation of sclar photoveltaic projects

Tim brings extensive Anancial and accountancy knowledge to tne Board as
well as an understanding of dynamic technology businesses garea from s
executive positicns




Principal risks and uncertainties
Principal visks
Managenent 1dentfy assess and marage raxs The pnracroaf ricks taat the rcup aw expased o

associated with the Group's husiness cojectives and

e
L those

strateqy. Risks arse from exfernal sourc
wich are nihierent cormmnercial risks in the markst,

and frorm operaticnal risks contamned wathn tha

systems end processes empioyed within the

business. COverall risk exposure S managed across

ersifcation of activities,

Risk Mltngatlons

S Rl TRSers Tismaawes D TRy 4 emdieer avnme rreer Bhahe o SR MYRIau0 % Roma.

Market risk: « Contrattsare e

Thie erergy seclor s experencirg portorn of e en
senificant turbulente and there s » Leng-term goy

3 rizk that forecast evels of income N place. soch as

are not achieved dus ¢ changes in
winolesale energy cnces, off-take
contracts or gon
Diue to tris wurboert eqviranriers,
the potential for mcreas
rterver Uon by tne reguiator 13 also

{"ROCT stne~e
generated from

Changes in Govermirren: poicy
migy res-rtin reduced Ing Jme
st ear“; weithin the garoup doe o
Uﬁnal l‘:‘-"c 3

Operatﬁonai rlsk . U'wpredw aciat
Levels of energy produced ray dversificancn o
e lower than antc pated due o » Reguiarservcis
sub-Gptimal weather conatione are keotir good
or performance 1ISTues with assets are LUnava
equiprnent, wrch rnay result .n

S qmﬁc\:“' [Wlals Iar‘ﬂed downtime

‘<

Financial risk: .

Energy Di\nsion

vernmentcsubsides « We ergage wihtre \:m@m’“ﬂrf ard the OfF
prectncty Markeats | OF-.JE[- 1o zontabute to an ndustey voice
d with palicy ma<ers whae set

are descrnoes elow, slong with the reitigating

acions we take o reds ental impact of
of whether

the likelihood of tne rick nas noreasad, decieased

the ris< We a's0 include our assessmrent

or remaned the seme.

Change

Reviiie  YIerkis Penwbiae. TR a7 Whees WAL TRMEEa 4 CEOuL ¥ UiMen.  TREENIL CA0fas ..

rierad into which Sx 1he ncome for 3
ergy generated by our stes
ernrnent backed offtake agraements are
the Rerewab.e Oblgation Certifcaron
30% of OUr energy INCOrme was
ROU revenue

OL-@ D M :INE

ure: r2guldiony requiremrianis Rl
i

cf ne weaier s rutigated througn
H o.0ges and locaton of sites

Iz undertaien to encure assets b
and rmunim se the nisk that -
‘ab}e for alonger genod

No change

nagemert ersurgs only a small porton of the Lroap's
fre erergy sets and revenues are expecles o oe desved from
gmfr"'\r,f)”a\»ﬂ SroCesds t235 5185
o the sae of sitesl gerersted
fron overseas sies are lowear than
:
Construction risk: + The Croup erters Sxeq pr e CoOniracts wih conradrors
Corstruchicr ¢f e sites 1akes wheare aporosnate to reducs exposure o as:ﬂg costs, o

lorgers or s mrore cosily tan
anuc pated due 1o rescurce
svalabi'lty or noreased costof

ras T‘.st@'ia <
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Risk

Market risk:

Expected sales fromr customers
are lower than anticipated due to
roreases competition from other

provders

A change r oolcy by the
regulators in favour of arger
cperators coLld imnact our ab ity
1o detiver piarned deveonment,

reducing revenues and efficiences
LCONTE I &

ganed from & 'arger g
Caruouar ares

Construc on r;sk
Construct on of the network
takes [onger oris more cosly
than anticipated due ©
avallabil-ty or increased cost of
raw rraera.s

3 resource

Operational risk:

Netwark service ‘s interrupted or

unrelah.e leading to potential oss
of customers and rendtational
damag@

Mitigations

N S R O I e

Change

Maragement eg tarly reviews tha carnpetitive landsczpe
in target build areas to ensare plans do nct confict with
other a tﬁ“ﬂfw networe operators.

Maragement engages proactively wth the O ce of
(Qmmum ations: and ne Governmert I ensure the
penefts of smaller operators are well uriderstood and its
interasts are approprately represented.

We are an actve particioant in relevant mdustry Rocies
oarticuiarly those “epresenting alternative network
operators

Increased
{due to more
Con‘ppt\*orf 17

the marke

rtracted with a number of dlﬁ'#‘rﬁmt
the exposure te any one individua "%‘

maraged lmcreased (due
through a detalded procurernent process with long term W Increas ng
visibility of work alowing pariners to plan financial and cermand for
VISIDINLy QT WErs 8IOWING Parners 2 H e resouUrce In
pecple resources accordingly the sector as
Where supoly chair prollems are expectad for Criica

The Gr
U,’D’JL iers to ree

entity Seiechon ¢ foutsqurce partriers s

Gup Pas con

Frermatve

rems our teams genersily Nave & months stock of Thre proczt;;?g:;ale
guct and other materals on hand. and advance order b’
rnical Pqumn"pm with lﬁmg Iﬂad rlmes
Cur networ-s are bult in a resibient way with diverse
route oplons should a fallure oogur in one route. SRR
o

Tnis, combinea wits an ability 1o identify and resolve
cnnectivity issues auickly, minimises downtime of the
netwarks.

No change

e i i
e &wnmﬁaﬁum\ﬂi%m

b
S mwa»mwmu&ﬁ;um;z‘,\g"w, W‘M“w& o ;m e
{Ebhpma S i T gy “‘; b TEEF e B B beriae nds Fapas
Praiiadal J*,%‘ 33’ Fangadls 47 ,m,“t, ;Mf by ne

4 .1 me\gx




Mitigations

Market rlsk « The wams pro- acf-ve y man wr pu-;ncm inine
meressing infiation and interest marxetplace and are “"‘Daftd 1 enforce where needed if
rates lead to a market-wios aican moves nto aefault

« Quricans are made at corservaive loar-to-vaiue (LT}

12, resutting in M
drop in property values across al ratios with 2 maximurn LTV of 70%.
sectors of resl estate. This may
rnpact our ability to recover a
[oan in full through a refinance

or sale

Counterparty risk » LoENT are secured against oy sical unaenying

Laans may be made 1o unsutabe sdchk as a cnarge over H“P pronecty or oner as
COUNIersaries, I pacting Gur morrower These are typrcaily o a frst c*,.r”;( st £
ashity W recover the toan batarce ensyre maxnum chance of fec wd erforcement
i full action te needeadd

¢ Thorouzh cue dhgence s pedformed onor © weil 1rg
loans, incluc nig property or tand valuations ard crec‘t
CHeoKs Sone On DUIIoWErs.

o Winere loans are written for 33515 LNGe” Constucion,

ores and covernarts are put i place 10 ensure

b
SUEC

Hg’af&’hcgréi HomeBultdms DMsnons o

Risk Mlt:gatrons

L T TRy vs g rTaEEe Seas s b teane S s EELL NARRRe C THELeTTUEc TeRad O h TThew Sen TR 4 Siue THVRLmosa 8 n MR Sgvay Sien T ie 0w x

foe e
TR

Mo change

SCONGIM
climate)

Market risk (Healthcare and . Harwr‘g congents an urideveloped tard are ﬂpfr” sed W
Home Building): rmaximise revenues ard reduce the nzk of losses or

Afallin house nnces ccula
impact our ab:l;.y G generale
expected revere from the sate
of apartrments in our reliremiant

Constructlon rlsk(Heaithcare e The Croup erters “xed prce Cortratis whers gporopnas
and Home Buitding): to reduce exposurte 1o iNCraasing matena, Cos's
Corstruction taxes lorger or « The Group orly works w.tn reputab.e 3rd parties with a

i mare costly tran aruicipatec sironig track reco o OF delivenrg s ar Drojetts
due to resource avanability or
Mz miateria s

Heaith and Safety rlsk "G nrocedures

e Group martans rohust Lo e
{Healthcare): relatrg to the provision oF mez‘“ ery . Ces We review tng

Tre prevaston of rgury of trirgugh corcucting regi
avnidacle loss of \fe Cioar IS0 5LDECE G external
patentsis of Limost mpertane « The!

and s cntizal o maintaining 32 anzncal s
good rz:puta 1Gr wT‘Gat.o as
5 N P

increased (dy

te unsta D‘ﬂ

ECoONOnic
climate




Risk Mitigations Change
Market risk: « Where ficating rate gebt is in place (where interest vanes
Anincrease in pase rates may in line with an underlying benchmark rate), the Group
increase costs or debt faciit'es. enters into hadging arrangements o fix a poridon of these
‘mpacting the Growp's atility © payrmeants throughout the term of the ‘aclity. Fedgirg
service debt a5 1t falls due arrargements are outlined in Note 21 of the financ.at
statements.
Liquidity risk: « Adetai.ed cash flow forecast s prepared and reviewsd
Poor management of cash wathir oy mariagement on a montrly basis, iIncorpoarating cash
the Groug could imgact the avarability and cash reganerrents across the Group. On at
Group's ability to meet cbligations weast a quartery basis this s shared wih the Board
as they fall due « The Groug monitors bank covenanis or an ongoirg kasis i

, s
to ensure contniLed adherence 1o covenants Where

covenarts cart be et forecasts are updated (crthe
lower cash avallanie as a result of the restrction

» Tre Group haz a flexible finance facility which can be
drawr: on at short rotice to meet immediate busiress

No chiange

naeds
Health and Safety risk: « We have developed rehust health and safety policies in
The safety of our employees complance witn 15045001 across the Group to ensu e
ard these employed through the welt-being of cur staff
contracts are of paramount « Healtn and safety training 1s croveded 10 our slaff and .
imporance There s a risk that contractors on a regular Dasis, increased
accidents nihe workplace coud
result in sericus injury o death
Cyber Security risk: o We employ a Chief information Securty Cfhcer ("CIS0O7)
Anattack on our IT systems and who is responsible for data secunty across the Group and
datz could lead to disruption reports guarterly to the Board. —
of our cperations and loss of « The CISC works closely with our ousinesses to ersures R
cusiomer data Loss or misuse adequate standards of security and infarmat.cr No change
of cata may result inreputational management are met.
darnage, reguatory action under « Fach of cur businesses that hold customer data has their
GOPR and cotential fines own dedicated resource for IT ard secuinty

The strategic repart was approved by the Board of Directors on 16 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by,

PS Latham
Cirector
16 Decemrler 2022

Levisd
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Loction 172 (1) statement

The Eoard considger that they nave adhered 1o the
requrements of section 172 of the Comipanies Act
2006 (tne "Act’), ana fath, actec in a

way that wo

have, N goor
Ld be most ety 1o promote ne

success of the

Grouo fcr tre bernefit of 18 mampears
as a whole {~aving regard 1o all staxeholders and
matters set out in secton 172(0(a-f) of the Acy

N durnirg the year ended

(4

N the decisions fake
30 June 2022,

In the performarce of ts dury 1o proow e
cuccess of the Group, the Board nas regard to a
1ding the bkely

ary gdec
listeric 1o the views of the Group's key stekenolders

L

nurnber of rratfers, ingl

conseguence

sortin the long terr, and

to buid trusr and ensare 1 fully undersiands the
potential 'mpacts of the decisions it rnakes "he
Board fufils these dunes partly by celegation 1o

committess and tre bosrds of subs:diary

urdertakings, who operate within a corpsrate

OEEMMancs amawork acrass the Group.

Al evary Board micerryg a reviaw of health ard
& & group, financ.al and operanional
parformance, as weai 35 legal and reguatory
c erta<en. Tre Board also review
other areas over t-e ccourse of the financial year
=)

> Croup's busiress strateqy, key nsks,

slakeboider-rewled Mmatte s, diversity and inciusivity,
envronmenta, mattars, corporate respons bility, and
goversance, comrclance 2nd legal matiers.

Principal decisions
We defire principal decis ans takern oy the Board as
inGse dewis ons that are oF & sratlegic

that are sigr

natre and

i any of our key slakeholcer

groups Tne Z3oara consder that tre o owing are

« Evaluaing arna Gecrdfmg K mave ahead with
in ';ns, wrIch s part of
1 AugLst 2020 the

Group acquired g large scale, ready to consruct

wind s.te

In Austraua, Tris deoloymer‘.t alians
with the Groug's strateqy © contnue
develop renewab.e energy sites wniich provide

precictable, lorg-term revenue strears. The

Bcard corsidereg the ODDoriumy and how ©
qmd w th our obje

ortribution 1o the ¢

tives to mrake a positive
rmmunity and ervirgrment

Tre Group decided to expand irts our rewest
divisior, house busicing n May 2027 tne Group
acquired Ehwvia homes, a fu;i«serv:ce raperty
developer, grovd ng sen frora the design,
to the engimes rg and then hnal constructior

to ensure the delvery of gualty workmansho
) versfy ng the
nto tris new sector has been well thought

Group's asser bate and ertering

Sumwath long e growt™ n mina Tre Board

sed the strategic opuortunites within the
oefore gecid ng o move ameas with s

aca gw‘mtwon cornsidaring how ths woud impact

exstirg pusinesses within the division ard how
T aligned with the Troup's strateg ¢ abjectives o
gelver long-term value and orediciabie growth

‘or cur shareholaers

Reviewymg and cec'ding to move aread with
NCreasng biomass operatons woicn 1s part of

our renawables divis.on. In October 2021 tne

Group atguired 2 large scawe, waste-tc-enargy
corstruction si:e " Scotland Tris deployment
ey to contnue o
oorerewalile erergy
SITES WITr :;rovde oredicianle, long-ter
revanye sreams, and provice Ol ENCe aganst
rges in the LI erergy

market The 2oarg corsidered tme2 cpportu—iy

ard nowy i sl Jdr obyectves to

0TI O

make a positve contrioulion o the Comrmiusity

ard ervirgnment
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+ The board decided 1o change audit firms via a
tender process for the year ended 30 Jure 2022
The Group had changed sigrificantly since s
previous auditors were appointed and tmérefore
we weare unable to relably assess the value for
rmoney we recelved. Three firms undenwent
the tender process ard Emst & Young LLF were
selected because of tnerr strong commercial

riderstandirg of cur bLaness, effcent audt

methindology ard value for monay.

Business strategy
Our business strategy is set out on pages 21 10 14 of
the Stratecic Reperi. Managernent prepares a
deralied Group budget which is approved by the
Board 01 an annual basis and forms the basis for
e Group's resource piamnng ard deployment
decsions, In mak'ng decisicns concerning the
business plan, tne Soard has regard first and
foremaost to its strateqic focus, but sl=0 to other
rnatters such as the interests of its vancus
stakenolders and tre long-term impact of its
actions on e Group's future and reputaton,

Shareholders

Shareholder relations and generating sharenolder
value s a key consideration whern the Board 1s
maxing sirateqic decisions Tne prime medium By
which the Group communicates with sharehoiders
is through the annual report ard finarcia
statemenrts, whicn atm to provide sharehotders with
2 full uriderstanding of the Groug's activities and its
results This informat.on is publishec or our wessite
at www . ferntrading.com.

Employees

“he Group's emplo
overal. success of the business. Tne Directors fulfil

cyees are fundamental to the

their duty to employees by entrusting aversight to
ubsidiary Boards which the Chief Executve of the

Graup also sits on

The directors of the subsidiary undertakings
manage the day to day decision malsrg,
angagement ard communications with employees

and ensure that pecple are treated farly and are
valued with respect to pay, beneht and condtons.
We fuly realise that our employees wish to be
informed and consuted on matters affeciing the
work and ta be involved ir problen-salving
affecung ther own aregs of Interest and
responsiCility. The Group i3 firmly committes to a
ol ey of good communication at al levels ard we
air o estaizish a clirnate which constantly
ercolrages the open flow of infermation and
weas. Pre
at a local level znd the pwl
performance indicatcrs covering &

costs, and health and Safeiy.

sently this includes monthiy tearn orefings
ation of mornithly key

cutput, aperating

Tre heash ard safety of aur emplcyses n the
workalace 1s & continual focus for the Grou
its broad ¢
Fealtin & Safety Reportmg at macn boara meeting to
cies and procedures are in

o, given
sperational business Tre Directors review

ersure agprornate pa
place to profect the b
emplayees and contraciors, Where there ara
these are followed

ealth and safety oF our

potental dehciencigs or ssues,
Jp and resolved on a tmely basis, with the Board
tons

having cversight of tre ac taken

The Group cuiscurces aciivitias and managerment
of certain operational activies to external supplers.
Whiere activifies are cutsourced tne Board ensures
trat they are managed by reputable sunpliers who
meer all the relevant industry and regulatory
cormmitments as well as treating employees fairly.
Expected standards are documenrtec in all service
contracls and adnerence to these a<e continually
monitored by Board through their service
agreement with Ocicous Investmenis uimite

Suppliers and customers

The Group acis in a fair manner with al supphe
and custormners anc sesks 1o maintain strong
busness retationships with thern This s ach'eved
by all contracts neing negotiated through a fair and
transparent tender process which includes
assessing the impact on the lorg-term objectves of

© ROSERRTURSR TS 1 - hee
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the Group. We revisw our payment processing
times against contracts every six moths to ensure
suppliers are paid promptly and this information for
the companry is avallable on the www.gov.uk

website,

The Group ensures it
manner i al custom
cervices, and acivaly

or defaults.

[ BNGEGES 1D "RI0WE any disputes
The Board close *Ly ronitors customer
roetncs and engages with the managemant team (o

understand tne issues if nusiness cerformance does

rot meet customers’ exoe

The Board consders Ocopus lvestments L ted
ic be a key pusiness partrer and sopolier with
responsiniity for the provision of operational
overs.ght, inancal administration and cormnpany

cecretar al services,

Community and environment

The provision ard operation of s.stainakls
nfrastructure 3 af tne cente of tne Group's
strategic goals Tnrough s busingss aciivuns the
Group seeks 1o make a postive contribution to the
ComImunty, ervirenment and econcmy (Qur
renewatle erns

Gy business s helping the UK mreet

its renewable energy targets, our private Rosoitals

wd the NHS throwghnout the Cond-16
croviding treatrment for nor-Covird-19

NHS patierits trat otnerwise coug not have bean

r Fore network wil

Fave suppc
pandem’c by
carried out, and ou Jve pecnle
N rUral ComMUnites access t hgh-speed
broaabard

Business conduct
As Directors our intentinn s to behave resgorsitly,
ensunng management cparate ing busrness witn

mtegnty enain accordarce wth the high standards

»f conduct ard governance expected of &

sUCT as ours. Ouirention trough our ousiness
strateqy {outlnec on pages 11w 14} s to opersle in
seChers ana work with other busmessas that share

cur valuss

Business ethics and governance

The Board is resporcinle for ercusrg that the
activues of the Group and itg various bosimesses are
conducted ir comoliarce with the faw and

appicable governance ard reg.ulatory regimes, and

in acherence win preval ng best practice for tre
relevart raustry This noiuces reviewirg merra
controls, e .swmq tnat there 15 an appropr.ate
bawance of < A cxperience represented on the
Boara, and ensurag that the inancial staements
gve atrae and fGrvicw of the state of affairs of the
Groug Further detadl can be founa in the statement

of awesrors resgporsioilinas on page 29. In e year

to 30 June 2022 no areas of concen fave been

flagged in thus regard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's poley on employes, nurar rghis,
social and comrunmity igssues, ervironTent policy

and aﬂt‘fc-:wupt\om and bribery rratters 5 discusses

n the Direciors’ Report or page 29 The Board
acuvely promoes 3 Corporate cdture trat s hased
creicar vaues and behav ours
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Review of financial statements

The purpose of this repart 15 to provide additional
explanatory irformation on the financial staterm

an

fs.
I measurém cur performance, the anarcial

©ESUres tnat we Lse include those that have been
derived from cur regoried resuts n oder o
elirrmate factors that distort year-on-year
cormparisons. Thesea are consdered non-GAAR
financial measures.

I
[

the finarcial resilts can
nctes o the financial

A reconcibation of these
bea fourd in note 28 of the

siEeTenis.

- o
=

ch
thaowe expect to

that extent

The francial statements show assets at cost, a
they do not reflect the futire vaiue
s To

¢ Her matenially from

aerive from these busines

aCcountng performance may

the share price and may not reflect changas in the
full market value of assets or businesses owned by
the Group.

A numpeer of zcguisitions were made during the

vear, including nine opefatmna reserve power sites,
a wasie to enargy $'te under construction, a
corstruction ready weindd farm in Australia and

seventeen solar rocftop sites under construchon

no

rtty after the year end, in July 25022, we sold

large solar site 1 Aust

w

Darungton 2oirt, a ralia.

T'e suppert continued exgansion, we had built up

Ccash reserves at /-ﬂcr end af £255m waich included
of £97m from
L priot o sale,

ne cash irflo piscing extarnal

=

alar

refinarcing in Darlmgtom Pcin

£476m for the year ended 30 June 2022, which s a

crowth is two fold, increased energy generat'on

(restated) Movement

2022 2021
£ 000 £'000 E'GOO %
Revenue 711 830 425,302 ?80 JZS 67%
194,916 104 036 SC,SBO S/A
Pr\;ht loc), bcrom tax 47 604 (22 663) 70.267 31"'/
Lefm ng b’)m( ne cf DroVISICHNS) 360,901 385 512 (6"/03
Cash 256,415 172,478 23837 49%
Net deft 793,169 699 440 93729 lé"d
Net assets 2,219,448 1, 887 842 231607 18%
Financial performance §OE425m) which was predominanty driven by 3 84%
QOverall, the Group nas reported a profit before tax of 1 increase in revenue within our energy divis.on Th%s

£70 3m improvement on the pricr year (2021
£22 7m loss restated]. Overall BB DA increase
87% 1o £765m {2021 £104r restated), which is
primarily aue 1o increased energy generation as well
as increased erergy prices.

d by

Revenue increased by E287m to £712m (2021

‘Earnings before interest, tax, deprecation and amortisation

frem having owned/operated one of cur biomass
plarts for tre full year and a large solar plant in
significant

e year due

Austraila reach:ng commissioning, arc a
Imcrease In average energy prices over the
n supply end dermand,
Aflict i Ukr

to the mismatch beuwee

exacerbated by the ongaing <o alne




Group finance review

-0

Revenue growth was strorgest in our erergy

div sion tut we alse saw a mar<ed improvementi

ges Jois Dart of

. rehounded well from
Julred Dy tha Cowid-19 pandemic
response, seling 41 units
52%1 and an increasing ir revenue of E75m to
204 (2025 £12 7

O bus

lockdaonwns

rothe year anrcrease of

™

J.

Revenue from cur lendirg
25% to £42rr (2021 257m) due to a smaker average

ver the year as casn

divis on saw g drep of

was rrade avalacie

to grow e parts of the pusnes

Operating expenses for e yoar were 1In iine witn

our expectations, with e increase prmariy drives
Sy InCraased oparaling ¢ost i cur nbre division a3

it nas expanded Reﬁ;*u&mc;-*:g external sebl to

terms over the past bwia years nas
Creace rinterost costs of £2.5m
E£36.31m;.

included in tne results ths year is a oront of £28
recogniced on the sa.e of two wind farms in
Frl16em of ¢

or: solar sites solo N previoLs years

rintand

ard a realisat on o cdeferred consideration

Financial position

ontnued sharencider inerast and

long-term finarc ng and capiial raisea by new shase

IszLes 1o grow the susiness. We nave rvested

4
i
174}
pat
]
py
o
Q_\

thy MG the Fore broadband Sector over
the past four years which will recuire furtier cap:ita’l
diture over e next 3-5 year

d <. tNCIE3sINg cur
diversifcation across seciors

Cf tre casn ~eid al year ena, £251r was neld in

Cur enargy, Reme buncing ana fibre subsidiaries,

e & rumper of corstruchon and

where rmere g~
infrasiruciure projects Uncer way, reauring cash to
oe readly avallatle for stage paymenis due ir the
montns after year end

Gocdwall, at £54m (2021 £567m resta

N

continues s grificant number o the
balance wneet ang arises ¢n the acguisition of scme

C
susinesses. Acquired businesies, ‘or exampie
ranewadcle energy sites, often tiave a market vawue
in excess oF tne cortpany's net assets, reflecting
their reliaole futare ircome strears Account ng
convenuon regures that ey 1dennfable assets aro
ramad on the baiance sheet 3¢ the accourts
ddivenat market

vatue wnich corrprises the future profits tnat sites

cannat reco s the Salarce of (ke g

re expectad to delver The aoditonal vaiue

)
)

a
excess of the valLe of fxed asefs tnemselves (suc
c

oghised as gocdwiid

ergy
erational
exgected

"ig targicie asses
cLCA as soiar panels or wind turoines We pay
S WE

BCquire, which may

. f-scc;gd:sed Wl

over the e of the
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Sector performance

Energy
As ecorormc activ iy and giobal demana increased

2021 E196m restated), partally driven by increased
site costs where L120m was :ncurres at Gur

at
trroughout the year, so too did who.esale energy biomass sites and £93m at cur reserve povier sites,

t~e prices for raw materials have increased, on
average, by 69% due ™ an increase in the suoply
costs, The combinec cost of sales for the reserve

prees. driven by moverrents in commod Ty prices
which rasalied i the overall increase N orevenusa

earnad across our energy stes These market
factors nave resulted in ar increase n revenus of
B4 o £595m (2021 £322m;.

power and biomass sies increased by £110m o
E217m (2022 107m) It should be noted that the
revenue generated by the bicmass and reserve

Correspondingly, EBITGA 3150 inc re&”f—d by 112% to
&6 (2021 E126m restated; reflecting the
nificant ngrease ir enegy revenus l’)verel toral
e

power stes increased oy £192m during the year w
E353m (2021 E18imi

ogerating costs increases by £130m o £227m

FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021

Production Production External External

(MWh) (MWh) Avallablllty Availability

B:omass 1,050,038 84.6% H23.2%
lLandfilt Gas 240,226 97.9% 97 6%
Reserve Power 403,355 94.2% 92 0%
Solar 554,858 97.7% 96 0%

wind 851,214 83..241 90. 5% G2 1%

Total 3,099,690 2,682, 019
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Healthcare
Hezlthcare operations cortrisuted 44y
(2021 £42mjto CGroup revenues ‘or tne year

rg the mpact of :ncreasad reverus in
Sales of apartrmeris at the refrermeant

reourded well from the lockdowns
y lhe Covie-13 pardemic response

\n

selling 41 ursts in the year (an imcrease of 52%
20211 and increasrg revenue Oy £76m o EZP Zrﬂ
(2020 EL27m

Lending
Reovenue from ending decreased oy £14m 1o £42m

IS Ta)

121 E57ri pnimanty due 1o a smaller average

e U
car pook for 2022 whrien resulted 10 a decreaed

revenue stream for the year, The wtal (Gan book

OPLOrunties across other
seciort witnin the Frcup nctuding acguisiticr s and
constructon. The make-uo of the toan bosk has

chiftec slghtly where we have izsued a hgrer

number of smalder 0ars within the residentia

sector, as well as more larger «cans in the

developmert sector a~d tne commercial secor

E3ITDA for the iendirg division ce

4 7
fD
a
W
T
(o2
o
i
o]
P
in

of E&8.7/m from a peofit of rearly Ely

n the prior
yvear This rrovemertrefecis a provision of £257m

L resarve nower sies

the lcan boox against loa~s

and a provision against a healthcare ioan of £14m
2022 £3

22im nthe prior year

in the year ¢ June G was providea

20a7st loans versus
Fibre

As a relativey new diviz on, all the fibre busine

e ouid nhate and are sTartirg 1o add

custorrers to tner networks 3y 30 June 2022 the

divsion a

o
o

i in kne with exgectations ana refects the

developrmertal stage of tre dvision

As we build these netwerks out, the assets will be
recogrised on the paiarce shest at cost whcn

carnct include future value whicr is expec

gererated as the assels have been internaly

gererated. Tric iz different to the share pr ce where
the future value expected o be generated from the

ascels is ncluded

Home building
Etivia Rormes was acou red in May 2022 and ras
therefcre had limited irnpact on the A~ancia

pcerformance durng the year The business is

foreczst o desver Z78m réverue ang =6 5m

sr enaed 30 June 2323 Results
frorn tre Aest guartier of 2023 irdica

@ Tne Dunness

15 broasly performing in ine with expecanons

Funding and liquidity

Cur strategy is 10 secure ong-term finanang at
corzervalive levels from wainstrearm canxs o
Thance retarns from our renewable erargy
year end we nad ELC44m of

fAqancing with £441m o

GOVEIMENnt INCentives Or Droven techm;iogy and as

SULh Mave lower raturms Thal witout e

et for our snareholders

LTy o ararcng our Duse

Cash Low We peusve nat farg to adopt s

STAEGY WOLLG F3ve & NESatve IMpLach On Lusiness
return ang Shd ren over the long termn
payable s fixed

ard herefere we are rnet s:gniﬁcamly exgozed (G

Approxraely

ted to be

verage would
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the interest rate volatility. We continuaiy

review financing arrargements 1o ensure that they

ureerns

are competitive and optimised for tne needs of the
busiress, To ensure cash s managad in ar agile
manner, we mantair a flexible finance faclity
wilich ¢ e drawn down or repad to maeet

5 Needs.

rrrnediate busines

Looking ahead

“re Group has reboundad well from the effecis ¢
the Cov d-18 panderic and has outperformes
expectations Whlst the current econamic outlook
1s one of challenge and unceriainty, we anticipate
rrunimal impact on cur results due o the
oredictable revenues streams and cost base, and
activities Cougied with: the

Lp across the busingss,

essentia, nature of our
civersification we have built
we are positioned strongly for these turbulen:

fimes ahead

We continue to pay particuiar attention to the twr
challerges of rising interest rates and surging
irflat-on — coth in terms of lending and porifolic
maragement These trends impact a: areas of the
Group's business and are likely to remain for the
foreseesable future, so we remain cisciplined in our
investmant appreach, cortinuing to monitor the
situation carefully and taking a prudent agproacr {C

any current and emierging nsks.

We are posiive about the continued opporiunity
for growth and continge 1o believe hat the
tusiness is positioned well to take advantage of
future growih opporiunities across its core Lusiness
rding and ! building

the marketl and

areas. Energy, le nouse
cperations are weid established ir
conunue (o make excellent progress with robust

perfocrmances in tne new finarciai year. In line wth
our pianned strategy, since the year end we sola 3
large solar farm in Australia for a small orofit, w tn

proceads being redeployed imto new opoortunities

continues o rol ouwst in lir

o

Deployment into fipre
with expectations and the Group has now passed
rnare than 155,000 homes by our Sbre networks,
Sales activty‘ in our healthcare dvision ¢

"

2Mains
strong, witk nearly 40% of annual saes budge:
already compieted or resefved 20r0ss

al sites as at

the end of Septerther

d watnic the autlmea staiement as part of
Finamce 3ill, the UK Government will
15% windfall ievy UElect-icty Generator
Levy" or "EGL”
revendes in exc
~

i on waclesae energy markst
ess of £75/
apply to the Group fror L January 2025 10 31
2028 The exacl iegisiati
irrmd-Decenrber 2022, but based or the initial
a

MWh. This 1s expected 1o
March

ior wil be published

relegse
as at 30 September 2022, We estirmate the 'mpact

rompact aralysis has keen performed

to be a droo in valuauon of approximatety £45m
for the sites affected, which contributed to a

2 Op decrease in the srare proe to 177.0p in
Cecerriver 2022

We expect to generate strong operating returms

from cur estabushed dwv sions for the coming
sdaion to the antc

construction phase assels

yedrs,
cipated outf for our

Tre hesaithcare and

e

fibre divisions are well into their bui'd phase in line

with aur lorg-term strategy and we anticipats
strong returns over the next five to seven years

Upon matunty

PS Latham
Cirector

16 December 2522

ol
wend Ha
wuTodnbitagenidy
Bedreianas iz
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
staterments of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022

For a summary of the Group's results, refer to the

on page 23

Croup finance review

The directors nave ro
a div derd {2021 £

The directors of the Company who were in office

e

during the year and up to the date of signing tre

financial staterments were:

PS Latharm

KJ Willey

PG Barlow

TArtnur appontad 1 July 2022)

Refer to note 23 ir the Notes to the frarcial
statements.

Rafer to tne Strategc Report on page 12,

ection 172 siztement on page 21

L U SR [N
e SN .

The Groug's obectves and poucies on financal risk
rmanagernent inc.uding information ¢~ the
exposure of the Group to creoit rsks, bguidity risks
and market risks are st out in note 21 o the

& Group's

firarcial sTatements, Tn principal risks are

cn page 16

set out in the strateg'c report

2 permtied by section £14¢ {20) of the C
cirectors have elected 1o disclote

requered ope in the aireciors report

oy Schecue 7 of the 'Large and Med:um-sized
Companies and G

Regulaton

SroAps {ACCC.UNts ana Reports)

5 2008 1m the strategic repors

case

The Groun en

o]
=
U
o
=
m o

asset 5
CLSINESS wit m:eg:ity N ar ethical, crofessicna
and resporsible manner, trezstin

custorners, supphers ard partner

and respect

Aoplicat.ons {or e"‘;p!oyment by cisabied persons
are gven ful anc fair consideration for att
'Eletlg

iCles, navirg regard o trer

ard abxities Shoud 3 person hezome aisehied
wrille Im fre Grouan's ertploymnent aevery effort s
rade 1o retan them n emcloyment, awvng

avernatyve tran ?"\ 4% NeZessary
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oA T b BTN

We fully realise that our employees wish o be

inforrned and consuled o matters gFecting therr

work and to be involved i probler-solving affect ng

their awn areas of interest ard responzbiliy

The Group s firmiy committes to a policy of good
arid we aim to establish
a climaie which conzantly ercourages the open
flow of information ard «deas Fresertly this

locel leval and

the publcation of monthly key performarnice

comrrnunicaton at all levels

includes moniniy ean briefings at 2

indicators coverirg cutput, operating costs ard
Fealtn and safety

T e T e

The Group -
Investments Lirmited 1o provide services to tre

as in olace an agreemert with CCIODUs

roun covering operational oversight,
administrat’'ar., company secretanial and company
accounting.

N T Lo B N I
R T L

The Board adopied a formal environmenta., sociat
ard corporate governance {"ESGT policy on

20 Septermber 2020, The Group recognises the
need o conauct its basiness, n a manner that is
responzible

nis
[ehs

to the environmert, wherever poss

35 elected not
on usage.
i3 the only Cormpany ir the

As a low energy user, the Company 1
to disclose date on its energy and caro
Fern Trading Limite
Croup that mee:s tne reporting criteria and
therefare no information is provided for the Group
as & whole

The Greup's Fas an Anti-Bribery Policy wrich
introduced robust procedures o ensure full
complance with the 2nbery Act 2010 and o ensure
that the highest standards of professional ethical

conduct are maintained

Do
r accordarce wih the recommendations of The LUx
Corperate Governance Code, the Beard has
considered the arrangements in glace 1o encou qe
staff of the Group or manager uf tme Group to rais
concerns, 1 confidence, within ther organisatio™
apout possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting or orer matters. iU-s satisfied thar adeguats
arrangements are in piace (o allow an independent
investigation, and follow-on action whare necessary,
W0 take place withun the crganisaton,

We are committed 1o acting ethically and with

nzegaty ir ail our business a=aings and

=

[ie

relatiorships and to imglerenting and enforcin
effective sysierns and conrols to ensure modern
savery 1S not taking place arywherg 1in our own
pusiness or in any < our sunpy chans, consistent
with our ebligations under the Madarr Slavery Act
20515, We excect the same h-gh standards from zil
of our contractors, suppliers and other business
parteers Ag part of our contracting processes, we
expect our supzlers o cormply with the Maodarn
lavery Act 2015

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Arnual Repot and the financal statements i
accordance with applicable law a~d requlation

ompany law requires the directors to prepare
Anancial statements for each financial year. Under
that law thie directors have prepared the Group and
Cornpany financial siaterrents in accordance with
Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (Unted Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 102 "Tre Firancial Renoriing
Standard applicable in the UX and Republic of
lreland”, and apolicable law] Under company law
the directcrs must ot approve the fnancial
statermenss unless they are satisfied that they give a




i
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true and fair view o° tre state of affairs of the Group
and Company andg uf the profit or loss of the
and Company for that per

hrancal starernents, the drectors are reauired 1o

od In prepanng tre

» select suitable accounting policies and then acply

them cornsistently,

« siate whether applcable Jrited <ingdom
Accounting Sta~dards, corrpriaimg FR5
<t to ary matenal deoar:ufes

dicclosed and explained 11 the financ al

heen foliowed, subje

+« make judgements and sccouniing estmates that

seabie and prudert, and

s pregare o f’ﬂamcial statements on the gong
cereerm ba

presune that th

cortinug m business

The directors are also respersbe for s E‘:;.j‘rdmg

the assets of tre Group and Conrpan
re

far taking reascnable sieps for the pfwr ntion and

detection of fraud ard other irregulant es.

The directors are responsbie for keeping a

s e
ageduate

accounnng records that are suffcient to smow ard

exeiais e .\,ruvp and Cormpa |y5 Transachons ans
sle accuracy at any time the

finarcal postion of the Sroup end ©

dgisclose wath reason
ormpary anc
erents

crabie thern to ersure that tng firanc al sz

comply wih the Cormrparies Act 200¢

The directars are respons.bie for “he mantenance
and ntegrity of tne Company's webste, Legislanen

in tha Uriced Kingoom governing trie preparatior

vnation of firacdal statemenis may differ

frarm legis.anicn o otmer ur sd clions

As permitied by tne Articies of Assccaton, the

directors Rave the beneht of ar indemrly whch
“ying third- ;ﬁr y indemnity prov sion as

—

omoaries Act 20086

financ’al year and s currer‘*ty in force

In tre case of sach director in office at tha cate »
Cirrectors Report s apnrovas.

D

« cC far as tre directar = awarg, there 1s no relevart

audit irformar on of wnich the Grous and

'S N = Py o
Comgany's auliions ae unaware, and

v troy F

ave taker alth ¢ steps tnat trey Gun

to nave ta<en as a director in order 1o make

thernselves gware ©f any relevant audt
informatan and to estab, sh tnat e Group and

Company's ad

This frmaticn < gven ard shiould be interpreted

A accordance witn the provisions of sect o 418 of

Act 2006

tre Comoanos

Ernst & Young LLP having beer acponted im 2622,
have r?dicated W

irgness W be reapported
for another term and will be croposed for re-
aopomtmept iraccordance with section 485 of the

[’\

orrpanies ACt 2006

The Directors

roved by the Board of

Drectors o
peraf by

2 and sigred or ifs

PS Latham

ditors are aware of that \niormation.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Lipinion

We have audited thie financial statemerts of Fern
irading Lirrited {'tre Parent Compary’) and its
ded 30

subsidizries (the 'Groug’) for the year en

June 2022 which comgrise the Group Saatermert of
C ompreransve incame, the Croup and Parent
Comnpany Balamce Shees, the Group Statement of
Castt Flows, e Growp and Harent Staicmeont of
Cranges in Eauty and the related notes 110 29,

incluging a summary of significant accountng
polizies, The firanciat reporing framewark that has
been apolied in thelr preparation is applcatlo iaw
and United Kingdor Accounting Standards
incuiding FES 102 "THe =inarcal Repomnc
Srandarc epplicablz in the UK and Republc of
lreland” [United Kingdom Generally Accepred
Accourting Pracuce)

=

N our opinion, the financial stataments,

* give a true and fair view of the Group's and of the
RParent Corrpary's affars as at 30 Jure 2022 and

of the Group's grofit for the year then endec
= have Ceen prope'ty orepared it accordance with

Urited Xingdom Generaly Acceptad Accounnng
Prachce, ard

rdance with the
regurements of the Companies Act 200€6.

have beer prepared in atco

Basis for oplnion

our audiz n accordarce Wwith
interrnationa: Stardards or Audiung (JK) ISAs (UK
and apoiicable law Our responsibilities under those
3 are further gescribed :n the Aucitor's

We conducied

standard
responsibilities for the audit of the financal
staternents secuon of our report. We are
irdependent of the Group n accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevart o our audit of
the financial statements in the UK includirg the
FRC's Etnical Standard, and we have fullilled cur
other etmical respansibilities in accordance witn
trese requirements

e

We believe that the audit evidence we have
ohtaned s sufficient and appropriae to provide a
basis for cur opin:or

Conclusions relating o going concern
ir zuditing the financiat statements, we nave
concluded that the directors’ use of tne gring
concern oasis of accounting :n the preparaticn of

he financial staternentz s aopropriste

SBased on tne work we have perfermed, we have
nat dentiied any matenat uncertamties “eiating ta
events or cordibons that, indiviaually or collectively,
may cast significart doubt on the Group and Parent
Company's abxlity to co
‘or a per od of twelve montas from when the

fnancial statemerts are authorises for issue.

rtnug as a gong Concern

Cur resporzibilinies and the responsibiit es of

the directars with réspect to gomg concern

arz descrbed ir the relevant sectiors of this
report. However, because net all future events or
conditions can be predicied, this statement is not s
guarantee s 1o the Group's ablity © continue as

going concern

Oiher information

The other information comoris rformation
mcluded n the annual report, other thas the
Arancial

thereor The directors are re

statements and our auditor's report
sponsitle for the
inforrmation contained within the annual report

cther

Our cprion on the fimanciai statements goes not

f"}

over the other nformation and, except 1o the

T

ent atherwise explcitly stated in this report, we

o3
(&)

ot exoress any form of assurance conclusion

therean

Our responsibility 15 to read the sther information
and. in dong so. consider whether the other
infcrmation is materially inconsistent with the
financial statemerts or our knowlecge obtained in




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of ine audit o oirerviie appearsto be 1« certam disclosdres of Drrectors rerrunaration
rmaterially misstatea If we idéenafy s.ch rmaterial : speciied by aw are Not made, or
nconsistencies or epparent material misstaternents,

e we bave not received all the information ard

we are required 1o deerming whether s gves rse

explananons we requira for Gur audst

to & material misstaternant in the firancial

< S et trormes sy ‘f ac on e Wk sy H e » % _—r
staternents tremsawes. If, pated on the work we : Qﬁﬁsg’*@ﬁm%z e of directors
have oerformed, we concluae that there € a H

., oAs exptalr‘;ed maore fully n the Directors
aterent of tre otner INformaton, we ‘
PIRSpONS

;30 the Directors are resparisile for tne sreparat'on

material misst

\n

s statement set oul on gcages 29 and
are required 1o report that fact

We rave nothing to reportin this regard oof e fina N:dl ciatemenis and for bein

thar ey give a

iﬁ?mmw § on other mattess g:&?mﬁg:{fi}gm interrnal control as the D!rectors determice Is
e

by the Jompanies Act 2008 | mecessary to enanle to

= preparainn of financal

In aur oprror. hased on the waorlo undertaren in o staternegnts tratare froe from material
the course of e audic Lomisstaiemant wirether due o fraud or error
« theinformaton givenin the Strateqic repart and 1 In crepanng fne finaraal stateme
the Din s repor: for the firarcial year for Poare responsicle for assesang the Group's and tne
wrich the firancial statements are pregared s P Parent Corpary's shility to continue as & going
corsistent with e Snancial slatements, snd i oconcern, gisclasirg, as ancicable, matters related
. . I to going concermn and using the gong congem
o the Strategic report and Directors’ eport nave : e s -
. ~ , I nasis of accounticg uness tne Directors eitner
ceen prepared inaccorgance with apohcasie : i
Tontend @ liguldas the Group or the Farent
legal regurrements : '
: Company o to cease operations, or have nG
E o) Sliterm gt N o o e
Mattors on whick we ave *’%(ﬁ&éxi‘%ﬁ £ : ealist'c alternanve bt o do so
repori by excepiion : . , .
PO Audtor’s responsibilities for the audit

)
“h

Loy by | oy e KO ~ TSt N
in the Lghr of the «nowledoe and understanaing of tha Hpanelal statement

iﬁ

PN

e

the Groun and the Farent Company and its
) Cur chjectives are 1o 0btan reasonalne atsurerce
envirorrment obtained in ne course of the audit. ) o
. L L . ) about whether the finarcial statemreanis a5 a»
we fhiave not identfied reatenal rrisstatemeants n

o
are ‘ree frorm maerisal missiaternent, whether due
the Strategic report or Direciors’ repo
a 4

o fraud or eror 3nG 10 'ssue

B

We have nothing to report i respec: of ine that incl.des our oonion Reatonacle assurancs 1§

folowing matters nrelation to which the g ~igh evel of aszurance, butis ot a guarantes that
Cormpzanies Act 2006 requires us o report w yGe 1 1 g guait conauces in accordance woin 1SAs (L)
N oLT opror Dol aoways detect a matena:
Doaxstn MSsiatementc cAn &
+ adequate aCCOUNNNG reCoras nave not peen kepl, | Ch s MSSIEETETC Can 3
‘ {0 are considered mater gl
or returns adeguate for oUF sudii rave not seen 8 COMSIBered Mat” 8

not visiteo by LS o

rancial slatermertis e Nt

accounting records and
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considerad capable of
detecting irreguiarities, including
frand

_L
ity
I

above, 1o detect irregularities, includirg fraud. The
rizk of not detecting a mate‘ial misstatement due to
frauid 1s higher than e nsk of not detect ng one
resJiting from error, as fraud may mvclve deliberate
concealment by, for exarnp.e forgery or intentional
misreprasentations, or through collusion. The
exient 1o whicrn odr procedures are capable of
detectrg rregulant'es, ircluding fraud 1< detaied
be.cw However, the primary respansibility for tre
crevertncn and detection of fraug rests with both
tniose charged with goverrance of the ertity and
rmanagement

Our agpreach was as fellows:

= We chfamnec an understanding of the legat arnd
requlatory frameworks that are applicable o the
roup and determined that the maost sigmficant

are those that relate to reporting framework (FRS
107 and the Comparies Act 2008}

» We understood how Fern Trading Limited s
comolying with thoze frameworks by making
enquines of management, those charged with
goverrance and trose responsible for legal
and compliance proceduras as to any frauad risk
framewcrio withir the entity, including wnether
a formal fraud nisk assessment iz compleed. We
corrcborated our enguines trrough review of the
following documentation or performance cf the
following procedures:

= gbizining ar undersianaing of entity-level
contrels and considenng tne influence of the
control environment,

« obtaining an undersiarding of policies and
procedures in place regarding cemplianice
with laws ard regulations, includirg now
compliance witn sucn policies 15 maonitored
ard erforced, obtaning an u-derstanding of
mranagemert’s proces:s fordentifying and
responding o fraud risks, includirg programs
ard controls estabished o address nsks
idertined, or otherwise prevent, deter and
detect fraud, and how semor managernerit
rmonitors tnose programs and contros;

» review of board rreeling minLes n e period
ard up 1o datwe of signing,

» We ascessed the susceptbiity of the Groun's
financia: statements to materal missiatement,
inclad ng how fraud might occur by holding &
discussen witrin the audit tearm which included:

« idartification of re.ated partes,

« understanding tne Group's business, the
control envirornment ard assessng the innerent
r s for relevant asserticns at the sigrificant
account level including discussicns with
managemernt o gain an urderstanding of
“hose areas of the financial statements which
were suscephble to fraud, as identified by
rranagemert, and

= consideraed the controls that the Groug has
established to address risks identifed by
the entity or that otherwise seek to prevent,
deter or detect fraud including garing an
understanding of the entity level controls and
pohicies tha! the Group apphes.

= Based on this understancing we cesigned our
audit procedures t¢ identify non-compliance
with such laws and regulations QOur procedures
involved testing of journal entries through
journat analytics tools. with focus on manual

PeREacpiL iy
1

4
Spaivsih
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exirailn
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals

meeting our defined risk criteria based on our

understanding of the business, tested accounting

estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
staterments; and inspecting correspondence,
if any. with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report,

[ et s es o w
S R S P AL A A

This report is made sclely to the Company’s
members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

0 the company's membpers those matlers we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law. we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁ\/m%&fo ]\ P

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditer)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the vear ended 30 June 2022

(reestated) ;
2022 2021 ;

£'000 EQ00C

DGO B b B S 77 0 1 7T B B b b koo B ¢ i

Turnover ) o “ 711,830 425,302 ;
e (410,883) {221.277)

Gross pro t 300 947 204, 023
Adrministratve cxpenses (258 251) (23'1 845)
Operatlng profltl{loss)w o o - - o - z o 42,696 - (27819
Ctherincome 1 1,550 G454

incorre frorm other fixed aswet irvestnents 5,249 4449
Share of operating profit in jo nt ventura - 1755
Profit or cisoossy. of subsidiaries ard joint venture a 29,533 28,568
Cther interest receivatile and amilar moome 5 130 897

Interest payable and similar chargos & (33,554 (36.067)
Proﬁtl(loss) before taxation 47,604 (22,663)
Tax on DIO’"\T;/\\ o55) 7 {16,294) 8 349)

Prohtl(loss) forthe fanancnalyear - 31,310 - (31 012

Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27,005)
Minority interest {6,622) 4007
31,310 (31,012)

Al resulls relate 1o cort nung activities. Note 28 dotans the pner per oo adiusimeants

Group statement of comprehensive income for the vear ended 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021

‘ N £000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 33316 (31012

Other comprehensive income

Movements @ cash {low neages 77,985 44,983
Fcrelgn DXFﬂangp gam/ foss] on retrarslaion of qubalfl ares 18,561 (333)

Other comprehenswe income for the year 96,546 .

Total comprehenswe income for the year 127 856

Attributable to
+ Owners of the parent 134,478 17645
+ Non-controlling interests {6.622) {(4.007)

127 856 13638
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Group balance sheet as at 30 June 2022
{restated) i
2022 2021 :
£000 £000
Ei;ed assets o S R by SRR+ o B« RSt L T s e aan £ £ AV e e Bt I
Intangible azsets 8 557,708 576,739
Tangible assers E] 1,893,430 1581682
Irvestmerts 13 35,452 11000
Current assets - - .
Stocks 12 184,479 94,711
Drors finciug _ 13 623,161 598,002
duz aflter more than one year)
(.uih as b,"w. Jrvﬁ N ha wd 1 256,415 17? 478 ,
Cred!tors amounts fa!img due wnthm one ;e-ar ‘ - 7 ”14 |
Netcurrent assets D l 663 "’2u
Total assets less cur-rent habclmes ------ 2. 85( 553
Cred to due after more than one year 15 S (992,425) S (9@3 339) ‘ '
Prowsuons for l]abllltles - R R 17 o (82 620] o f4l 372‘. ‘
Net assets i ' - o o z 219 448 1 887842 i
Capital and reserves g
Called up share capital 18 161,662 149670
Share pramiurm acoodr: 364,882 173,118 §
PMergar resere 1,635,569 1,440,257
Cash fiow nedqe reserve 63,006 (14.979) ‘
Profitand | COL ’Tt {2,770) 1 S} 049
2222349 1884.121 |
) @501 3721
2,219,448 1887842
hote 26 detaus the prior pericd adustrrents
These consoldsted fnanc'al staterrents or pcages 35 0 92 were apcroves by the Board of directors on
16 Decerber 2022 ara are signed on ther cehal oy |
PS Latham |
Diractar

Registared numier 125016345
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Company balance sheet as 2t 30 June 2022

2022 2021

N Note £'000 .. EooD
E:xeé asvsetsww‘m» . ST— [T s
tr v{as mer l 0 2,539,978 4 116 366
Current $ssets o - 7
Cekters 13 39,888 50.3383
Cash at bank and «+ hand 11 6, 422 1523
Creditors: amounts falling due withinoneyear W-ZJW"W"W(41;5} o)
Net current assell::» T 45 861 o 28582
Totalassets less current liabilities 2585839 2145348
Net assets S - : - 5;565,839 o 2145 348
Capital and reserves
Called Ly stare capita: 1% 161,662 149,676
SHare orermium account 164,882 175,118
terger eserve 1,986,457 1,791,145
Frofit and loss accoun: 72,838 31 409
To{ai éharehol{:‘lers funds o S 2,585,839 S 2 145

The Company has eected 1o take the exemption ur‘der section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to
it for the financial pernod dealt witn in the financal

present the Cormpany proft and (oss account. The oo
21 oss of £157.504.30C)

statemenrts of the Company was £236,742,000 (20

Thease financal statermants on pages 35 to 92 were approved by the Board of directors on 16 Decernber 2022
and are s'gned on their behalf by:

PS Latham
Cirector
Registerac rumber 2260163
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Siroup statement of changes In equily for the year snded 20 June 2022

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total None. Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
(restated)  {restated} funds
(restated)

£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'0600

o

as ;

25270 (&% s1at

138,435 - 1035569 (63.837) 41185) 1668982 9,570 1678552

Pricor pensd

ad astrrenms inot 26)

- - - 3875 13,823 17703 - 17703

Baiarcs 35 ar 1 Juy 138435 - 1635569 {59.062) 127356) 1686635 9570 1696.255
2027 irestated)

Loss for tre fir 3ncial

- - - - 127,605 (27,005 4 007) {31,012)

- - - 44985 - 44383 - 44,983

- - 1323 (333} - {333

rRorenens v
e for e year - - 44983 127.338) 17645 14,007 13.638

- - - - 1821 1831 (La4z (1)

11685 173,118 - - - 184,803 - 134,803

- - - 16,369} (6.843) - {6.843)

145,676 173218 LA40.257 (14979 136,043 1884121 3721 1887.842

2020 Irestated

S tnguaa RIS Bhagay g LD % FEERERban SITTOE BE g £tV FhRbeng T PE SNHrbabanan SCUPRPORNEER LG L, TIOY B L L

Balance as at
1 July 2021 (restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 {14,979)

P'roﬁt I.'or the _ _ - - 37,932 37,932
financial year

336,049 1884.121 3,721 1,887,842

Changes in market
vaive of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,9858 - 77,985
hedges

Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561
of subsidiaries

(6,622} 31,310

1
H
i
|




4 | FINANCIAL STATEM

ENTS 30

JUNE 2022

Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
£'000 E'000 E'000 £000 £'000 E'000 £'000 E'000
Other
comprehensive _ _ _ _
income/lexpense) for 77,985 18,561 96,546 96,546
the year
Totat comprehensive 3
income/(expense) for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ 195,312 _ {195,312) - _ _
reserve
Shares issued during 191,764 - - - 203,750 ~ 203,750
the year
Balance as at
30 June 2022 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 (2,770) 2,222,349 (2,901} 2,219,448
Note 26 details the pric- pencd ad;usinents.
Company statement of changes in eqguity for the year ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Tatal
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
£000 £'000 £000 £000 E’000
Barce at - ror,,grat@n - - - - -
LG)S o the Arencai year - - - (157.504) (157504)
ot sation of merger reserve - - 155,312] 195 312 -
Toral corr prerensive noorme - - 165,312 37 808 157,504
Shares ssues dunng e year 150,120 173118 1986457 - 2,309,695
\ham can selled aurng the yesr (444) - - 16 1991 (6,843]
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149 676 173,118 1,791,145 31 409 2 145 348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of ‘merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312) -
Total comprehenswe incame - - 195,312 41,429 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,829
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Group statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA s b JELee

Cash flows from operatmg a‘ctwmes

R

Frofb/toss! for the fnandial year attrbutab.o 1o tne owrers of ihe paren:

Adjustments for;

Tax o orohtsd H

Inferest rocevabie and sinmas Incorme

nterest payaplo ard oiher sirtiar Sharges

Prof ron disposat of subsaanes aod jomt ventue

Incarme from jort yerture

income from fxed gesel INVesIments

Araortisavon and imoarrie s of intangible fixed aniets

Sesracatnn of targing Gred aossts

Non-cash statt o

Movernents on donvatives ana fereign exchange

ncrease in stock

Incregse/(decrease) r

Mo contralling

Net cash generated from Operatmg actlwtles

Cash flows from mvestlng activities
Purchiase of sutidiary wndertakings ot of case acquired,
Sale of cubsiciary undoriaxings and ot veniuee
Purchase of rangibie assers
“urchase of mtangibie assets
Purchate of unl sl investroents
Sale of Lnlistea investrents
merest recoived
mfurr from Uu’\ e rrurL
Net cash used in mvestlng acirlr\'.rrrlrhes 7
Cash flows from financing activities o
Froceeds from finarong
nrerest pad
Resayments of inancng
Froceeds Sam smare ssue
am'e lu on of threg

Net cash generated lrom ﬁnancmg actavntnes

Net (decrease)hncrease in cash and cash equwalents

Caskoard ca:k aquivalents at the baginring of the yes

SRR TR B aaman T TT 0 AN tut b

16,294
6 {130)
3 33,554
2 {29,532)

(5,249)

8 45,762
! 101,802
3,040

(18,044)

(19,829)

31,022

{173,956)

& (6,622)

{52,377)
101,778

(322,446)

(7,222)

(124,203}
1% 105,000
4 130

1299, 340)“’

201,719
(32,319)
(32,013)

203,750

.
(23]

[
[&s]

' 341, 137
83,694

Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year

243

L2858
41,897

1 172,478

1 256418

{restated)
2021

£,549
(G97)
36,0643
(78,568)
(L.755)
(449
37704
84697
8875
{15.788)
5,701
249,574
6,871
(4.0607)

(l 751)
341 917

(221.987)
34,504
(110,457)
{875i
(29.687)
20133
997

L 077

(706 4’?6}

(35.552)
(012 676)
184,359

(6.299)

(70,268}

(34.577)

206,688

367

172478

Nete 26 detals the prnior penoo adisstments




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2

Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fert Trading Limited ('the Company') s a grivate corpany imited by shares and incorporatea on 14 May
2020 Tne company is domiciled in England, the United Kingdom and registered under comipany nurmber

12601636 The address of the registerad office 15 at 6ith Floor, 33 Holbom, London, England, ECIN 2T

Statement of compiiance

The Growp and ndividual finanoat statements of Fern Tracing Lirmited Fave beer prepared in compliance
with Un'ted Kingdorn Accounting Standards, including Fimarcial Rtpcr\:ng Standard 102, Tre Financial
Regorting Standard applicab e in the United Kongdom and the Reoublic of fre.and 'FRS 102 and the
Companies Act 2006

Basis of preparation of financial statemenis

The Hinancial sialements have been prepared on a goirg Concern basis, under the rstoncal cost conventon,

as modified by the recogrimon of certan financial assets and tabilites measured at fair valus, ard in

accordance with the Comparies Act 2006 and apolcable accounting standards ir the Unted Kingdom. The
~cipal accounting policies, which have beer applied consistently throughcur the year, are set oot below.

Tne consoldated fFnancial statements inclode the results of all sucsidiaries cwned by Fern Trading Limied
as hsted 1 note 29 of the annual irarcial staterrents. Certain companies of these subsidianes, which are
Isted m note 29, have taken the exerngtion from an audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 permitied by
sectior 479A of Cormparies Act 2006 in order to sllow tnese supsidiaries o take the audit exemption, the
parenl company Fas given a statutory guarantee in ne with section 475C of Companies Act 2006, of atl
the outstanding ret lakvlites as at 30 June 2022

Going concern

—

ne Group's and the Company's pusiness activities, togetner with the factors kel to afect its future

aevaeloprnent, performance and positon are set oUt the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 14, The financial
pos:tion of the Group, its cash flows, liguidity positon and bc-rr'owmg faclivies are descr:bed in the fimancial
review O pages 23 o 27 The crincipat risks of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 19.

C}_

ne Diectors perform ars annual going concern review that considers tre Group's abinty t© meet its
financial obligatons as they fall due, tor a pericd of at least twelve maonthis after tha date that the financial
statements tave peen sigrad,

Due o the challenging market conditiors management have performed ar assessment 1o detarmine
wherther there are any materia. urcertainties arising that could cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to contnue as a going concern. No sign:ificant .ssues have Seen noted and as a consecuences, the
airactors believa that the Group is well placed o manage its business risks success’ully despite the current
LNCErEIN SCoromic OLnoo«

I IR

‘s?s. bE
Sl
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Statement of accounting policies

ir reacning his conclusion the Cireciors have rev ewed the financial impact of the u rtanty on the

Group's nalance sheet, pro and casn flowe wth specific consderation awven o e faliowing

A reverse stress test was performed o the base case forecast 1o ascertain wnat scenarios wodld result in
risks 1o the Groups wquidity position The test showed even i an unlikely scenarc of a sigrificant reduction

of revenue of 6%, the Grous s sble 1o sustan its current operational costs and mesat ali Haolites as they fall
se fina

due for af least a year from the date of s-gnirg thes N staternents whern utlisng e avaiiaole
Sgmirg t

facilities witnin the Group.

The Greup has a number of financ.ng faci tes that contain covenants reguiring the Group to mantan
g p

specified firanzial ratios and comply witn certa n other financal covenants These financiar covenants arc

o
tested at least quartarly, and, at tre date of this report, t~e Group s n complance witn al ite finar 2ial

Stress tests on reazonably plausibe scenaros sucn as a signfoant reducnoni in EBITCA of 84%

ss the covenant requ rernants for tre ar least the naxt twelve montns 314d
ail covenants ’fwav\fs beon ‘ore::a’:‘t to be met even under the stress test scerar o, 1 the g0 g concearn penod,

AT 30 June 2022 the Group nad svaillabie cash of £256r end heacrocr available of 2445m incluaing 4
rex-'c-%v'r*g credit facility of £210m Deot of L28m s due o mature in 28 thar or“'/ear witr, the orande-

of 956 payadle o= more tnar one year, Tog Growes facibes, repayrent dates ard undrawr amounts are

setout ' Now 16 [ oans and Borrowings

Key accounting judgarent and estimates Nave peer rmrade with consideration g ven 1o the curent
economic out.ook Hey estmates include loan recoverabilty, valuauon of work in orogres:

18

decamrussicning pr()aﬂglor\s, impairment of goodwil ard investments, business corbinat ons anc baage
accourting, Det

Basec ¢ the above

current cconcmic condinnns and the mpact on the Groun's fnanas.

posittor, liguidity ana anan he directors have ©

! concluded thar tne Groug and Company has
adecuate resources 1o contitue N ope*at‘r*nal cxistence for tne next 12 morths Thus, t?‘ey COTIINUE O
adopt me going concer~ tass of account ng in oreparing the arnual hnarcial statements.

7

seamiptions for qualifying entities under FHS 102

FRE 102 a.ows a cuahfyrg ertity cartain qisc.osure exernot s certar conditors, whick have
€

en compliew wilh, ncluging notfic of exemctiors oy tre Company's

snarenolders
The Compary nas teken advaniage of the falowing exermptions

Lis 2 Qualiying enbty and the consolicarzs

=rits nclused the Company's cazh flows
Cfrom g fnanc gl instrurent diiiosares, reguires unae
5 s orovaed i
i from disclesing tre Comoany key management oersonre. Comoentation, 32 recwras by FRS 102
paragraps 337
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Basis of consolidation

Tre conschdates firancial statements include the results of Fern Trading Lirmited and all its supsidiary
undertakings made uc to the same acccocunting date All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses are eliminatec in full on consolidanon The results of subsiciary undertakings acaud rea or dispesad
of during the genod are included or excluded from the income statement from the e‘f\.\_tlve date of

acauisTon or dispocal

All undertakings over which the Group exercises control, being the power to goverr, the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activifies, are consolidates a3 subsidary undertakirgs
Where a subsidiary has different accounting policies 1o the Group, adjusiments are made to those
subsidiary fnancal staternents (o apply the Group's accounting pot Ces when preparing the consclicateo
financial statements

Any subsidiary undertakings or associates soid or acquired dur'ng the year are rcuded up to, or frorm, the

[ R
fer]
=
w
(73]
fa)
oY
n

ange of control or change of sigmificant influerce respectivetly

Vinere the Group has written a put option over shares neld by a nen-controlling interest, the Group
derecognises the non-cortrolling inerest and instead recognised contingent deferred cons:deration lability
with'n otrer payabies for the estimated amourt Ikely 1o be paid ro the non-controling interest on exercise
of thoze options The residual armourt, represerting tre differe~ce between any consideration paid/payable
and the ron-contrailing nterest’s share of net assets, is recogrised as goodwiil Moverments in the
estrratad lability after inital recogn:ucn are recogrised as gocawill,

Forsign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group finarcal statements are presenteds 'r pound sterling and roundsad to thousands.

The Company's functions and presertation currency is pound sterlng and rounded 1o trousands

ii. Transactions and balances

Fore:gn currency ransactions are translated into the funct cnal currency using the spot exchiange rates at
the dates of the fransactions At each percd end foraign currency monetary iterns are transiasted using the
closing rate Non-monetary itermns measured at nistorical cost are transiated uming the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction anc non-monetary items measurad at farr value are measured usng the exchange
rate wher fair value was determined Foreign exchange gans and iosses resulting from the settlement of

transacticons and from the transiation at pencd-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liadilties

denomnated in foreign currencies are recognised in the orofit and loss account.

All foreign exchangsa gairs and '¢ss5as are presented in the profit and 0ss account within admin:strative
expenses’

iil. Translation

The trading results of Group undertakings are tranzlated into pounds sterling at the average exchange rates
for the year. The assets and liabiities of overseas underiakings, ncluding geodwill and fair value agjustments
arsing on acausition, are transiated at the exchange rates ruing at thie year-end Exchange agjustments
ansing from the retranslatior of apening net :nvestrments and from the transaton of the profts or (osses

at average rates are recognised in '‘Other caormprehensive ncome’ and ailocated to non-controlting interest

35 approgriate.

o ;«r,w} .

ThEba

iy b ar
dEey
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Turnovey
The Group operates a number of clazses of pusness Revenue s derved oy tne following:

» Energy

Turnover from the sale of electricity gererated hy solar farms, , TESETVE DOWer
plants anc biomass ana andfil sites s recogn.sed on an accruals basis in the seriod nowhich s
gernerawed Revenue from long-term goverrment backed offtake agreements, such as the Renewable
Opligstion Cert-fcation 'ROCT) scheme are accrued in the penog in wiich it relates 1o, Turrovear from tha

ale of fer

5]

« Heslthcare
Turnover is recognised wher the s gnificart risks and rewards of ownership of retirement properties have

eliably, and it s

pasced o the buyer {on legal completion;, e amount of reverue cant
hat

probanie that tne econamic bensfiss asscc ated witn the frarsacion wi flow

to e entty Turrover
o

I
O
—

=

i recognisea at the far value of tne consideranucn receved for haalthcare serviges provid

[SRALiaaar-N

sed Laszed on the date tne service 18

Hler
course of cusiTess, and s snowr net 0° VAT Turnover

o

reccgr

nrovided

« Lendirg

urnover regrasents arran nd interes: or loans proviaed 1o customers, net of any value
C |

Tu
added tsx Loan interes: s recogrized on

it contracisal evms of the loar

5
iD
<
<
=

n accrual oasis in

<

agreerent Acrangemert fees are spread over the Ufe of the loar to which they relate

« fibre

Turmover 1s recagrisea at tre fair vaiue o the corsderation receves for nternst connectivity ard re!

ad

IT services provided in e ~orma. course of busness, 27d 15 shown net of VAT, Turnover 3 recognsed

based on tre date the service s providac.

+ House puilzing

Turnover 1s recogrised on legal corrpienon of the sale Tarnover

from housing assoc aticn contracts s recognesed by wference to the . ted as 2
orogport on of the wtal contracs value.
Emploves banefils
The Group orovides a rarge of tenefits (¢ empioyees, includi~g annual bonus arrargements, paid holiday
arrangemerts and defined contibution pensicr plans

i. Short-term benefits

Thort- tarn seretiz incuding notday pay ard oiner smilar non-mon

O
J
0]
o
Qo
-
9]
D
bl
T
LN
A
[%4)
Qr
=
D
—
D
O
O
le)
3.
)
D
(w8
a 1)
w“
o8]
-]

EXLENEC N the per CC 1M wWhicr Ire sery C& 15 reCo v

e =4

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A gefined cortr oution olar s a pension glan wndes wrick tre Gro

oy

senarate entity Once the conmbutiors have teen pad tne Group haz no ‘urtner sayrrent Soigalons

he contrunons are recocgrised as an exgense wren they are duge Aricunts not paid are snowe 1r

acc-uals nthe baance sheet. Tre assets of the pian are nels separat

y from the Greup o0 irdegendently
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iii. Share-based payments

Cash-settled share based paymerts are measured a1 farr value at the balance sheet date The Group
recagnises a liasiity at the nalance sheet date baced on these fair values, taking into account the estimated
numeer of units that wili actually vest and the curert proport-on of the vesting pericd

Charges in the value of (b

=

bil'ty are recogrnised n tne i-corme statement

Tre Group ~as ro equity-seitied arrangemenis

Finance costs

France costs are charged o tre profit and loss account over the term of the debt using the effective
interest metnod so that the amount charged s at a constant rate on the carryng armount. issue costs arc
initialy recognised as 3 reduction :n the proceads of the assocated camtal inswrument and releazed to the

profit and loss accourt over the term of the debt

Current and deferred tax

Tax iz recognised in the satermert of ncome and retanea earmings, excegt that a change atributable o an
itern of :ncome and expanse recagrised a5 other comprehensive INCorme or to an tem recognised directly
in equity is alzo recognised -n other comprenensive income or directly in equity respectively,

he current income tax charge 15 calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have beern enacted or

_|

[}

ubstantively enacted by the balance sneet date in the couniries where the Company operates and

generates income

Q

Deferred baiarces are recognised in respect of ail timing differences tnat have originated but not reversea

by the Balance <hieet date, except that

« Therecogn tior of deferred tax asse's is imited to the extent tnat it is probakle that they wll be recovered
agairst the reversal of deferred tax labiities or cther future taxahle profits; and

+ Any deferred tax balarces are reversed if and wnren all corditions for retainng associated tax allowances
hiave been met

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in rescect of permanent differerices except in respect of busines

combinations, when ceferred tax is recogmsed on the differences between the farr values of asses acculred

and the future tax deductions avalatie for them and the differences bewwsen the fair vaues of liabilities

acauired and the arrount that wil De assessed for tax Deferred tax is cetermined using tax rates end laws

inat have been enactad or subsiantively enacted by the halance sheet date.

Business combinations and goodwiil
Busiress combinations are acccunted for by app.ying the purchase methad

Tne cost of a business combinauon is the fair value of the consideration given, lizbilities incurred or
assumed and the equity mstruments :ssued plus the costs directly attrbutable to the business corrbination
Whare control is achieved in stages the cost is the consideration at the date of each transaction.

On acquisition of a business, ‘air values are aftributed to the identifiable assets, labilities and contingent

babiltes untess the fair value cannot be measured rehably, in which case the value s incorporaied as
gocdwill Where the fair value of contingent liabilties cannot be rellably measared they are disciosed
on the same Basis as oiher contingent liabilities
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nesents tre excess of the far value ana arrectly attriouiable costs of the purchase
17 values 1o re Grodp's nterestin tre igenafiatye net ag

aisition, goodwitl g aliocated (O Casn-generaung Lnits
the combination.

Cooowitl s amortised over its expecied use’ll Ife wiich g determinad based on the estmated Liespan of
the as 3cqu'red Yhere te Groun is unzkble o make a reliable fuseful ife, goodwil s
amortisc over a period not exceedirg ten years. Goodwill s reviewed and assessed for imparrment
ndicaiors an an arnnual pass and ary Impaimment s chargea o tre proﬁz a1d o35

Tangibis fxed assety

Tangible fixed aisais are stated at cost less depreciaton, Depreciat on s prowsed 3l raes calculaied 1o wite
off the cost of fixed aszets, less th

rer est.mated residual va.Le, over (el expected wieful Lves, Deprec.ation
carmmesces from tne dae an 3352 : -

=t -5 brouqgnt nto service. Land and a ¢ constraches

zeful livas are as folows

are not deprac.aed

4‘7; *c 37‘u w;lgm ine

Aszsets in e course of constructon are < cizted unt: they are

avallabie ‘or use

Where factors, such as technol A, acvancer

et o7 changes 1~ market price, nd cate thaf res duat value

&
]
)
u;
o
jia]
:

Al
or useful ufe have changed. the residual value, usefu: li'e or are arenged prospectvely o

eCt e new circumstarices The assets are reviewsed or impair nent ¥ tre above factars indicawe that ine

carryitg anrouwnt may be ropaire

Gaing and sses on dsposals are cetermired by compar ng tre proceeds with the carrying arount and are
sed within profit or loss

Inangiole assets are stated at ©ost less accuruiated amortsation ara accumulated 'mpa rrnent 15ses,
iz calcuiated, usrg the straigrh-une rretrod, weate the cepreciatie arr odnt of tre assets

to A
oINS resgLal values over thor estmated usetu bives, as fol.ows

Amortisaton &

Deve.coment rignts reiate to par=ng 2onsent to build 8 sclar farm and 2 wnd farm acqu rad on accu stior
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Where faciors. such as changes in rmarker price, indicate thal residual value or useful lfe have changed, the
resdual value, useful lfe o amortisation rate are amended prospactively 1o reflect the new crcumstances.
The asseis are reviewed for ampairmens i tne above faciors indicate that the carrying amount may

be ‘mpaired.

Leases

At nception the Group 3585385 agreenernss t
whether the arrargpmem- s, or contains, a lease basec‘ on the SJbS:a’TC-‘E‘ of the arramgemeft and whether
er

0
—n
s
w
-]
&
@
W
[%3]
]

the lease shiouid oe classifled as eith or an operatirg lease.

Leases of assets that fransfer sunst annatly ali the rizxs ard rewards iradenta. to owrership are classified as

(

nce leases Finarce leases malise—d at the commenceameant of the leass at the far valLe of the
legsed asset and depreciated cver tne shorter of the tease erm and the estimateg wseful Lfe of the asset
Asse's are assessed for imparment at each regorting date,

Leases that do not transfer all tihe risks and rewards of cwnership are classified as operating lea
ayments urder goerating leases are charged 1o the profit and loss account an a straignt-lire basis over the
penod of the lease.

Investmants

Trne Company holds nvestments in a subsidiary at cost lese accurmulated impairment losses. If an
mearment [0ss 15 subseguently reversed, the carryirg amount c‘ e nvestrment s increased o the revised
estimate of (s recoverable amount, but only 10 the extent tnat the revised carrying armount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogrised in prior

periods A reversal of ar impairment [os< s recognisea n the proit ang 1oss account

Lash

Cash includes casth in hand and depaosits repayable on demand. Restricted cash represents cask for which
he Group does not have immediate ang diragt access or for wrich reguiatory or legal requiremernts restrict
the use of the cash

Stocks

Raw materials, spare parts anc consamabies are valuaed at the lower of cost and net reaiizable value, Where
recessary, a provision 15 made for obsolete, slow-moving ang defective stock, Costis determimed on e
first-in, first-out {(FIFO) method

Fue: stocks (MBM and litten are valued on an average cost basis over one to two mornths and provision for
urniusable litter 1s reviewed rmonthly and applied to off-site stock.

Fue. stock of straw has been valued at tne historical cost per tonne of sraw A provision for unusable straw
dentfiea on an individuat stack basis and 1s reviewed monthly. Stocks are uzed on a first in, first out
("FIFO") basis by age of straw.

ol

Stocks of asn at Ficrophos are valusd at the lower of cost and net realisable value 10 the Sroup

Stocks of property developmant work in progress "WIP') are stated at the lowear of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct matenals ang, where applicable, direct labour cos's ard those cverheads that
have been incurred in bringing the swocks to their prasent locations and condion.
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Aoeeruad incomes

Accrued mocome on loar

accrued Gver the period r which

Deferred inceme 1s recognisea in ac

ng policies

s raade for imoairment. Any excess of the carryng amount af

s 1o complete and seit s recogm sed as an mpairmen: 1oss

>firnpairment losses a =¢ recogrised in the proft and

QJ

12 caicuiated at the rate of Interest set cut in treican cortracts Energy ricome is
has becn generated.

cordance with tne @erms et out in tre contact Deferred ircome s

ac
released o the profit and loss acoount ir the period to which it relates

Financizl instrumeants

S0

ng wade

ice, unles

12 measured at the present

Attheend o

f each reporung perioo

eviderce of irpairment If an a

Levis

amaount ang the ores

up has croser o adont Secty

tly carried at amorised cost usng the effective interest

fnang

=l valoe of the estmiaed cash vS 3.5

ons 1l and L2 of FRS 102 n respect of fnancial imstrumerts

and other receivanles and cash arc bark balances are iritialy
ns

5 the arrangement consutuies @ inancing ransaction, waere he

tvawie of the future receipts discourted at a mar<et rate of interest

t method

At assels measures at amort se d for objective

imoared the imparmeant loss s the o

betweor\ the carryirg
couned a

or gina: effective interest

rate The mmparmert oss 13 recognised in proft or oss

Qriher financa. assets, including mvestme

cntvantures, ars
subseque
Nvesiments

ritly carrieg at fair value arg
N ecuty nstrurr ents tha

reliably are measured at cost less impa

lMnanc al assets

are settied, or b substanuaily ald the -

(l

to uritaterally ell the assel o an unrela

n-hally measured at

ae derecognised wher (@) the ¢

anather party or () conwal of tne 3sset has Deen ransferr

< mecuity Insinments wWasn ate Not sunzidianes, astociae

fair value, which iz normally the ransactor pree Such 3
the cranges in far va.ue are recognized in oraft or loss,
S are not pubicly tradeg anc whaose ‘a3 valles cannot

irmrert

riractuzs. ghts 0 the casn

isKs ard rewards of the ownersimig of ¢

v has the practica: abil ty

< omat recnchio™s.

r3ation price, wniess the arrangeenrt corshituies &

20 el the present value of the future regeipic

ISUTLIT et IS mieas
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Debt instruments are subzeguently camed at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate metnoc. Fees
pa«d on the establishment of loan facilites are recognised as transaction costs of (ne loan o the extent that
g probabte thiat some or ali of the facilily wilt be drawr down In this case, the fec is deerred unil the
draw-dowr occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it1s preoable that some or ail of tre fac:lity will
Le drawn dowm, the fee is cacitalised as a pre-paymient for Lguidity services and amoriised over the penod
of tre facisty to which i relates

Trade 'uyab‘ ¢ are chlgatiens o pay for goods or serv.ces that have teen zcquired in the crdinary co.urse
of bus ness from suppiiers, Accounts payacle are classified as corrent liabilities i payment s due witnin one
vear or less. if notl, they are presented as nor-cur-ent habilues. Trade pavables are recognised intialy a
transacticn prce and subseguenty measurad at amortised £ost using the effective nterest method.

Financiai iabilities are derecognised when the babiiity = extinguished, that 's when the contraciuat obligatior
is chscnarged, canceled or exp res,

Provisions

Provisions are made wherg a1 event has takeﬂ place that gives e Group a legal or constructive obligation
that probaoly requires seftement by a transfer of e omic banefs and a -eliable est mate can be mace of
the amount of the obiigation,

Provisions are charged as an expense 1o tre profit and loss account ir the year that the Croup becomes
aware of the opligation, and are measured at the past estimate at the ba.arce sneet oate of the expenditure

ea
requires to setile tne chligat on, taking into account relevant risks and unceriaintes,

Hedging
The Group apples hedge accounting for transacions entered iqto ¢ manage tne cash flow exposures of
borrowirgs nterast rate swaps are held to rmanage e interest rale exposuras and are designaed as cash
flow hedges of floating rate borrowings. CThanges in the fair values of denvatives desi gnated ascashf
hedges, and which are effective, are recognised directly in equity. Any nmeffectiveness in the hedgmg
relationship (being the excess of the cumutative change ir fair value of the hedgirg ins:run"en: nnce
ircepticn of tne hedge over tne cumuiative change in the fair value of the redged item since ncepton of
the hedge) is recogrised in the profit and ioss
The gain or loss recognised in other compranensive income is reclassified w the profit and loss in
accordance with tne cash flows of the hedged item Hedge accounting s discontinued when tne hedgmg
nstrument expires, no longer meets tre hedging criteria, the forecast transaction iz no .onger highly
prob&sie, the hedged debt :nstrurment is derecogn’'sed or the hedging instrument is erminated

Share capital
Ord ary shares issued by the Group are recogrised in equity at the value of the proceeds recaved, with the
excass cver nominal value oeing credited 1o share gramrium

Mon-controlling interests

Mon-confrollirg interests are measured at their proport onate share of the acquired’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acguisition

wanr
soaad L
e aches
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Hey accounting judgements and estimate

The preparaticn of financial siztements i complance with FRS 102 requires trie use of certain Crit cat

2

SUrting estirmates 1t iso requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Cornpany's
ountng pelicies Bstirnates and judgerrents are conunuatly evaluaied and are gazed on nigtoncal
experience and other factors, imcludimg expectauonz of *LiLre events that are believad to be reasonable

under the circumstances. The key eshimeates ard judgerrents in prepanng theses hinanoal staterments are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)
Loans and advances to customers, mciuaing associated accrued income palances, are reviewed for

imMpairment on & quarterly basis in comfga‘der.ng the need for a provicion managerent determine thelr best

estimate of the expectec future cash flows on a case oy case bas's As this estirrate e an a certam

number of aszumptions about future everiis wheh may differ rom actual cutcorres, including the
corrower's ability t¢ repay interest and capita, dus m future periods, thiz gives rse to jJudgerrent as to
whether thare |5 a shortfall betwees the carying value anc the fair value ¢f ire deptor nalance,

rMaragement note tnat provisions against wans and mate ana have therefore

3

oerformed sorsit vity analysis oo the prow.ucn The Uvily anaysis conclude that a chnange

[y

of +/- one por cent in the amount provided against the estimated palance at risk woulc nave resuted in
£3.6m less/more exgpenditure bair g
carryi~g amount of the degtors and provisions at 30 Jure 2022

(a3

charged tc the ircome stafement durirg the period See note 13 for the

ii. Value of property development work in progress ('WiP') (estimate)

FProverty development W P is reviewed “or impainrent on a oeriodic basis In considenng tre need for 2
DOrovisior, management celerm ne tneir hbest estirmate of the recoveranie value. Managernent engage an
expert external valuer 1o provide key assumpticors acout fulure avents which may ciffer from aciuas

outcomes. includirg nroperty valuatiors, rate of sales and asvelopmert costz.

The:ze estimates give rnise (o udgement as to whether imere s a shorifall betweer the carry'rg value and tre
fair vaiue of tne baiarce as at the 30 June 2022 2ot year ena, management have reviewed the
assumptzons uged o determine e value of property devecument WiF and have ohserved ro Ccharges n
performance that would impact the vawuat.on a5 at the 30 June 2022 See rowe 12 for the carrying armroun:t

of the property geveloprment Wi=

ili. Purchase price agreement {Australian entities) (judgement)
The Group ownrs tws Lr‘prg)/ ererating sutsicianes in Austrar a which have enmieres inie purchase pree
agreerrents (FRPA'S i 2015 and 2021 The PPAs nclude a contract for differences "CID" whereby tre

subsidianes cay/eceve ameunts rom the custcrrer based on the diﬁefer:cez betweer 3 Gxes selng prce
a~d tne aciuag. oree for e,

outtide the scone of
s.Charrangemenis Treefore itis be

va“ gole cons de

iv. Business combinations (estimate)

The cost of 2 business compinat e s tne far value of the consideration given, habiit-es rourrec gius tne

cozts arecily 2unoutable to tre business comoirat or malr vawe of tese combimaucns s a key estimete

and mMcre detals are prov‘deo‘ cnpages 45t 45
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)
The provision for decommissioning costs s measdred at rmanagement’s best estmate of the oresent value

of the expenditure required to seftle the future obugationr to return land on whict: there are pe[atlohdl wind
and sotar farms, to ts onainat condition. Tne lever of tne provisions is determined to a s:ignificant degrees by
the estimation of future cismantling and restoraticn costs as well as the timing of d\smantl@mem

Wind Farms (estimate):

Manageent note that decornmiss'oning provisions is a crtical estimate ana nave therefore serformed
sensitvity analysis Tre resuits of the sensit vity analysis conciude nat @ change of +/- one per centin the
dif;:omt ate would have resulied in £2 1m increase/decrease in the provision 5See note L7 for the prowvision

recognised at 30 June 2022, Managemeant ulivse external expertise 1o provde an estimates cost io
dismanile and have used a discount rate of 2% o reflect the tme in vaue of money and the risss specific

an
s the oblugation.

Australian solar farms (judgement):
Trhe Group iz required 1o restare the 2ases premvices of tne salar farrm 1o their orginal condit
ousy recogrised, however In the current year this Juagement hac

on ar the end

of the lease term A provision was orev
been reassessed and managerr ent believe the lessor may wisn (o einer take title of the gssets for either

ontinLed use or o realise value througn seling the assets and as skch do rot believe that an outflow is
probas\,e to seitle tus restoration oizhgation

UK Solar (estimate}):

During the year. a third party perforned an assessmernt of the base cost of the decomimissioning of the
Groups JK solar farms. The findings nave resulted in materal change in the cost estimate and therefore a
provision has been recagnised for the first e on some sites The impact has rasuited ina provision being

raised for E18m to the Lalance sheet decommissioning lability and fixed assets. As at 30 June 2022 ere is
no irncact on the orodt and loss. Sites rot affected are addressed below

UK and French Solar {jludgment):

Meanagement believe that given the nature of these narucuar assets, the lesser may wish to aither take title
of the assets for aither continued use o to realise value through selling the assets and as such do not
believe that ar outf ow is probable to settle this restorauon aoligatior Management will cortinue to monitor
the situation at fach balance shest date

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate}

The valLe of goodw.ll held by the Group and invesirnents in subsidiary undertakings held by the Company
i reviewed annually for pairment Tre recoverablity of these balances is considered with reference 1o the
present value of the estimated future cash flows. These calcutations use cash flow projections which extend
forwara forecast pusiness gerformarce together with assumptions surrouncing the expected lie of the
asset, exiernally prepared forecasts end valuations, and any adiustments requred o the discount rate to take
accourt of business rsk. The estimrated present value of tnese future cash flows is sensitive 1 the discount
rate and growth rate used in the calculation, all of which reguire rmanagement's judgement Tesung of the
carrying value has been performed during the year, which haz invoived several scenarios being modellsd
Based on this testing and the resulting irmpairment recognised on invastments, management believes there
is sufficiert Feadroom to supbort the value of goodwill and investments n subsid ary enoties.

Management note that impairment of goodwill and investments is a crincal estmate and have therefore
performed sensitivty analysis on the provision. Tre results of the sensitivity analysis conclude trat a cnange
of +/- ¢ne per cent ir the amount oroviced aganst the estimated balance at risk would Fave resulted in
£5.49m less/more experdiiure neing charged to the income staternent during the pericd. See note 8 fo

tne carrying amount of the goodwill and investments at 30 Jure 2022
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b AR

Analysis of turnover by category

and\ ] aCuvllgs o
Erergy operatons  solar. "eseve nowen 3

Energy operations — b.omass and landfl

Healtrcare operat ors’

Heme paailding

Fibre ope

2022

2021

) o MNEZDOD F C‘LO
nd wir 365,958 179,820
223,526 1418246

45,978
25,034
8,930

711,830

42.266

B

83

425,30

[NS)

L

o

and ! zr; orﬂ’ZCﬂl E30. 1

Analysis of turnover by geography

Lt Rirgod o

Furope

= rrations € (174 (2021 F1l2md relal g to ihe sale oF retierrent v
ton to services renoered

2022
£'000

R b o e s SRR manas O BERK

603 913
£4,433

711.830

Other income

L1 dated

23,436

rilage uang,

2071
£000

" 38a759
31895

4"’5 302

861[;

2022
£000

2021
£000

3,550

5454
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worf sat.on of intargibie 39sels note §)

impairrrent of Ntangize assets (note 8}

Deprecatior of tang ble assets (row 9)

Auctors rermunerstion — Company ard the Group's corsotdated
Anancia. statemen:s

Augitors’ rernuneration — audit of Cormpany's subsidiar s
Aucitors’ remunerstion - non-aldit services

Auators remuneration - tax Comphanoe seruices
Difference on foregn excharge

Cperating 2a32 rentais

h

NE 2027

{restated)
2021
£'000

2022
£000

B T T T At S LLLEL TLL T LR U RIS PRE I I S R

37.849 27704
7,913 -
101,802 84,697

45 146

819 1124
246 513
482 672
7772 4402
13,783 7502

Note 26 detals the prior penod adiustments

K

[V s e 2y w vt

Wages ar salanes

S0C al socurity costs

Cthe

rPEns On Costs

2022 2021
£'000 L EDoO
85,432 41383
7.041 3809
3,233 1676
" 95706 46868

The Group nroviges a defined contribution schemes for its employees in the JK The amount recognised as

an expense for the defned contricution scheme is snown ir the tadle anove,

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022
Number

et SRS PO ST SR Y

Production
Admimstratior

[irectors

1,032
631
3 3

Tne Cormpany had cne employee other tha~ Directors curi

-

g the period ended 30 June 2022 (2021 none),
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L G LI LI

i veees R T e 2

g neas L

WLEneT s a ‘ 176 163

During tre year ro pension contnoutions were made 1 respect of the aireciors (2027 none),

The Groug has no other kay rnaragement (2021 nane).

OO T Tt s T

B

v number of subsidiar ey
ployes
aluatian of the unacriying suns
reportirng date ard ar e sett

of the Groun operate a cash-settled UT'F o qualifying errploysas wrereby

.'T-'

render services ir excrange ror cash, the amount ol which s determ ned by reforence *c the
o /
asured at eacn

Tee amoynt

whary The far vaive of the tabiity o the awards made s me
1 over thie vesting nenod.

Tent date. Te fair vaile iz secognsec

of experse recogrises fakes into account the pait availabe estdrare of the number of un's expectes o

st under the service ard performance condibions underiy'ng each award granted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021

Number of Nurmnber of
awards awards

‘1,914,751 1640000
1,763,563 274751
3,678,314 1914751

M'}mﬂd fﬁurmq hf* e ou

Ctosmg outstandlng balance

0 Jure 2022
GO

The total charge for the year was £3 133000 (202: £1,334,000) and at the 3¢
reater than one year (20210 £1,324,600)

wshiity of 22 45

there was 3

700G included w tin credinors

o

6 .1

b, 2 B £ T Dby T B an e LD R x b TP r b 20U

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
B ) ) ] B ] ) i E 000 ) £000
Interast on b]r‘ < nalances 130 397
Interest payable and similar expenses 2022
) £'000 B

prc_rt 30 can p

e CIrowWings
Amaort sator ol 1ISTae COiE 4N Dar < borowings

Proful s dmva'w:e Anancial nstroments

32,192

2,597
(1,235} £87
33,554 . 36068
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Foow oo

a} Analysis of charge in year

{restated)
2022 2021
. PR W e mre, mwm e u ke v e v s g g rees £’°oo W ww s wmantpesaix EOOO e
curre;ttax S 2 bbb < x Tt o (% LTSS b e e s SRR R s T ———
UK corporation tax charge on prony/ilass) for the year (297) 1648
Aduzsirnents inrespect of oor penods 3,196 [(2.866)
mfcwgﬁ tax suffered 5,641 -
Total current s chargedlcredit 8540  a21m)
Deferred tax:
Crnginat on and reversal of aming differences 6,227 2.074
Adusiments nrespect of oror periads (3,741) (3.998)
5,268 11 491
Total deserred tx I 7758 9557
Tax charge on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities " 16,294 2,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
"e tax assessed for the year 1s higher (2021 hugker) than th

7 12021 19%) The diferences are expla.ned below

n

T ST TR D RO R TR DR 2 i R B Rk AR % o

Proh I(E ss) bef re tax

Prom/‘ toss) rmrom 13x Mt fﬂ‘fd oy stur dard rc,EL o‘
corporation tax in the UK of 13% (2020 19%)

Effects of

Expernces not deductible for tax purposes
Cther effects

Ircome not taxshle for tax purposes

Ad ustrments i resnect of arior periods
Ffiezts of change n ax rates

Total tax charge for the year

oration tax in the UK of

w5

{restated)
2022 2021
£000 £000
o argoa L)
9,045 (4.022)
11,723 16,076
{868) 1022
(8,102) (©,351)
(545) (6,865)
5,041 11489
16,294 8349

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the mair rate of UK corparation tax from 19% to
25%, efective 1 April 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% (2021 25%)

which represents the future corporatior tax rate that was en

HNote 26 details the pnor percd ad:ustments.

acted at the balance sheet dale.
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B oo 0

Software Goodwill Development
{restated) rights
Group . N o ) £'000 E 000 ) E"QDO
Cost
AL July 2221 irestated) 264 726,602 10,216
ACGUiFe trirougn business - 30,042 4058
cotmbinatons (rote 27
Additions 2125 - 1.040

- (21,118}
; - 7 930
At 30 June 2022 3,089 743,456

Accumuiated amortlsatlon

15314

AL duly 2021 astated) 7 159,907 1.034
Disposals - (24€2) -
L0533 G translatior - {192) -
Impairrnert - 7913 -
< ~harge for the year 12 47, 514 J2.5
At30June2022 19 202475 1557

Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2 970 540,981

(rostaled) o gsT 566,700

AL 30 June 23

13,757

91&2

Total

737,782
34,100

3185
(£1,118)

761,859

161,043
(2.462)
as2)
7913
57843

204,151

557708

576 739

The gam on translatior of fore.gr currency dencrminged goodwall is receg
NCcome Amortsaton of goodwit 13 charged o adrnicistation Costs

Deraiss of the subsid

]

During the year the group disposed ¢f 2 wind farms :n
aMorisation was recogrised 1 e CUrrent year and

1)

m

1

ae recogriced in the croft and loss ir relanon 1o thes framsacuon was 22841

Irepairmient of 072 nas been recognised on goodwell 12021 nonel,

No atsets have beern pladged as securty for dzbiites at year end (2021 ~onegj

nlanc, as a result £2.

mised in

ries acawred dunng the year endad 20 June 2022 car be found in note 27

Fin Sm of accum_lated
15 3 of goodw il was reaised or e ale.

other comprehensive

SOOWIL

-
=]
oat -
Lsai™ On
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

8 o Sun

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under

buildings stations machinery assets construction

(restated)

OB i e E000 £000 000 e £000
cost b Ee e oot oo} (4 EETT RRTOR e AL R A R £A D3 RN A S AT R o At b s s S 25
AL duly 2021 frestatec 8,531 317467 1.695437 27.285 43277
AsilCrs 829 L3k /5,647 60,462 238,006
Acared Froush Grsnese 1308 - 51344 - 57667
Corrbinanors note 27}
Fx/farvalue movernert - - 368 - 3,294
Trarsters - 68 1066 30938 (32.070}
[rsposals (135) (?q 9‘1) - -
At 30 June 2022 10533 319071 1745911 118686 310170
Accumutated deprematlon - S B S -
At duly 2322 4410 90,055 414,559 1.28C -
Crarge ‘or the vear 183 17130 81,141 3348 -
Disposals - - (182) (222) -
FA movercent - (776) - -
At 30 June 2022 4,593 107,189 u 454,742 4,417‘ - -
Net bmkvalue e et . o e TR o
At 30 June 2022 5.940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170
At 3@' ;]vare 2021 frestared; l 4121 22';7,408 1,280,878 25998 43,277

ATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Total
{restated)

£0600

S N PR KR

2.092.000
374,480

(76, 086‘

'z 504 571

510318
101,802
(403
776}
610,941

1,893,430
1581682

Inciuded within tangible a

5

sets are capitalises dnance costs directly attributable (o ringing the asset into

use Tne net carrying amount of assats keld under finance leases included 1n plant machinery, fixiures ard

fitings 15 £51,785,C00 (2021 £51,53

ohsolete eguipment and developrnent

The Company had no tangioe as £ 30 Ju

Note 26 details the prior perncd adiustments.

00 ) Incluged in network assets

1S a provision of £1.022.000 for
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Unlisted
investments Total

Group B R £000 '000
Sone am; net book value . e s s e it smen o s 4t Are e b s e e 11 #een s are ot
Al July 2022 11,600 11,000
Addifions 129452 129452
(105,000) (lOS,OOO)
35 452 35 452

11 OGO 11 OO{J

Subsidiary
undertakings Total

Company R £'000 £'000
cost . B35 s rarmn e+ 40+ recemevesmns i © oo STALARS(SRANSR & R bRt aie s Can £ AT MEARRRE B dra R <
A E0 June 2020 2311678 2311678
Additions 228300 228,300
U\wpu 5als - -
At30June2022 o 2539978 2,539,078
Accumulated |mpa|rments . ‘ -
A 30 June 2021 195,312 195,312
Feversat of impairnents (195.312] {195,312}

,rnr Ty

At 30 June 2022 - ' - -
Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2,539,978 2 539 978

At 7P Jure /C21 2,116,366 2,116,366

Ceat

gw

ile of related undortakings are shown ir nce 2

Umiisted ~vestrrenis comprse tne Groug's holding of the members’ canta. of Tende LLP a iﬂﬁd‘r‘\g
ousiness, and s thasencidng in Bracken Trading Limted Ferr co-founded Tenda LLP in Gotoper 2022 witn

the rtentior o corducinrg 3 c-r@;ort;m of ts future trade through the partnsrskhip Adaiions and discosais

e o rvestments and dvestments 1 Terdo LLF in ine weh Fera's casa

requremenis and o bthise surslus funds Ferrinas a smad snarens.d e T tad fro
e to tire, Ferr's icvestrentin Brac<e~ Tracing Lirnited at 30 Jure ¢ 2

ne directors do rotcensder Tendo LiP or Bracken “racing Lried o
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2100

ash ncluoes cash in hand and deposits repayable or demand

Restricted cash represents cash for which the Group anes not have rmmediate and direct access or for
which regulatory or legal recuirements restrict the use of the cash.
Group
2022 2021
- . . E000 000

Cd h; DG}, \dr‘d - har.d SRR+ R AR OANES § gk S s et e EERe g R bt mfne s et e Foe s 15§M823W - 11;i;11
Restr.c &J cash 60,592 56 J37
Cash at bankandin hand ‘ ‘ - T 25&415 172 478

Resiricted cash s comprises of £726 000 neld in Escrow and £59,856,000 of cash held in swbsidgiaries with

Di-annust distributicn windows

ne Cornpany had a cash balance of £6,422,000 as at 30 June 2022, none of which was resonctea (2021
none)

i o o

Group
2022 2021
) E'OOO T £ OOO
Fuel, spare parts ana consurmasblas 26,02% 18,583
Property aeveloprnent WP wIM.SB 918 o 73923

184,479 94,711

Tre amourt of siccks recogrised as an experse dunng the year was £120,413,000 {2021, £41,212.000).

Included :n the fuet, cpgre parts and consumables stock value is a provssion of £390,000 for unusable “uel
ock (2021 £458,000; Ircluging ir proverty gevelopment WIP 5 a provision of £928.000 for warrarty and

site specific provisions

Trera has ozen no mparrment recogrised durng the year on sicck (2021 none, No invenitory has been

pledged as securty for liatiaties (2021 none;

The Cemparyy had no stocks at 30 June 2022 12021 none

ol

%&Qﬁ%

el

M\gw
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

Amounts falling due after oneyear T
Lsans and advarces to customers 137,662 16,128 - - ;
Amounts falling due within one year ;
Loans and arlvances to custormers 223,239 363,384 - ;
Trade debiors 42,050 16,121 392 8
Amounts owed by relaed npartics inoe 24} - £,820 32,950 12,751 ‘
Otrer dettors 20,199 24,972 3,843 50GR :g
CorpOratiar tax - 6,603 2,527
Corvalive Srnonca, mstrurcerts inote 223 54,409 €169 - - S
Prepaviments and rLed Income 14 2 ) 154375 o A176 o 32616 §
S S S AEZS,!.GV!&.. - - 558,002 39,888 50,383 . :‘
Loars @nd advances 1o customers are siated net of provissons of £22 84 CC0 2021 £28,193,0800)
Prepaymerts and accrued income are stated net of provisons of E7739000 (2221 £13,747.000) g
Norterest iz charged on amoonts owed by group underakings, as tre cutsiancing palances are unsecwred
arnd recayable on derrand (2021 none; !
Note 26 detans tnie onor penog ad ustmanis. i
)
3
1
i
!
|
%
i
!
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
L S T T SRS NN L SO R A

Group Company
{restated)

2022 2021 2022 2021

o £'000 EOOJ E'OQQ . £000

Trado croators 58,004 23,390 76 16

Cthar taxahion and scial securily 8,161 - - -

Crher creditors 24,362 55,806 - -

Amcants cue to related parties (note 24 - - - 20,203

Finance leases (note 16) 2,428 3,147 - -

LCervative: inanc.al irstrumerts (rote 215 - 143 - -

and de’emﬁr CICCTIE 75 465 72,0687 373 2 YOE

I8 e . . > v
Group

2022 2021

Amounts falling due between one and ﬁve years - £'000 ’ E‘OGO

Rank oans and overcrafts (note 161 T zas070 47297

Finance leascs inote 16) 5,899 6,125

Dervative firancial nstroments (note 23) - -

Grher creditors 5,364 o ﬁllS

Group

2022 2021

Afnounts falling due after more than five years ] £000 ~F000
éarP loans and overaraits {noto 16] o M 573,416 “&_%77535

Finance leases (note 16) 24,676 24495

Fer\v( tree ﬁha wcri\ st ?1‘ - 4? 772

Total creditors falling due after meore than one year V 992,425 o 903,33C

he Company has no creditors due in greater than one year,

Amourts owed to related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

MNote 26 details the prior percd adjusiments
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16  cne s el o e

Group

2N ore year

Zue nebtween one ana five years

e - 7 T SR mma OB g SRR ELo 30 H IR R Runan | OTREROR R L a naa STERIYs s L Sxpemaai 4 TERmcem LT Chppenet

2022
£'000

PSS et EEV S bbb s, 0

87,732
383,070
573 416

1,044 218

2021

/?86
247297

577235

The Company ~ad 1o bank loans at 30 June

2027

The bank loar s are cec.ared against assets of the Group with =ach loan as beld by the subsiciary shown elow

Erergy Lmited

Cedar Energy and Infrastructure Limited
Flios Lreray 2

Lhos Energy ©

Rocrmerarg Inagy Limies
Darlington 2aint Scar Farm Pty Limited

Madon Renewabie Crergy UK imited

Dwalacca W Hoooo FTY 1
Elvia riomes Limited

Zesrf:v r’* Je€ r\/‘mruqemf-r‘f rrr"t@@'

o g hnan, TSRMadeame L3 5 4 auet VT Gk £ in TUTROE bt Y aae L% owes

Interest rate
6 mr)ntn JONIA p us l 604
LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00%

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 170%

1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR

& rnonth SONJA plus L50%

& 49% {(swap rate of 4 59% +
1.9% margin)

6 rmonth SONIA plus 2 35%

1.7% + BBSY

5% + SONIA + 2.5% non-
uhlisation fee

Fixed rate 2.5%

2022

E'OOO )
429 338

30,946

56,079
284,348

114,026

85,718
31,614

12,306

43

104a218

34,995

295,344

871918

4':5‘8 14u A

SOMNIA replaced LIBCR as the efective interbark lendirg rate systern fror 1 Janiuary 2022

resulted ir ro commercial imgact 1o the busness

Finance leases
The future remmimam Anance

Da;/r*ﬂur‘“( diie

Nt later tnan one year

Later trar one year ard not laer 1ar five
Latzr tran Sve yoars

Total gross payraents

_ess hrance chargés

Carrying amount of the liab|l|ty

i aatsle

2ars

e - < .
WS are as ‘olows

2022

2,428

5,899
76,461
84,788
(51,785)
33,003

£000

The rate change

3166
6196
72,013
81375
(47609
33766

The Ainance leases primanty relare ¢ a |
renta., renewal or curchase ant on C

secured aganst the leased assets

[auses Rents payabe Inc

The Compary had no inance leases at 30 Jure 2022,

4 building ard rea

ase by wocahinflator Firanc

ltheare eadioment There are no ot ngant
S

2’23505 are



[z
£

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 20272

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

N A

Decommissioning {restated) (restated)

provision Deferred tax Total

At 1Juy 2 204329 20933 41,372
ircrease recognsed i proltand oss 21 11495 11516
ircrease recognised throuqh other comprehensive ncome - 18,202 18,202
Impairment 16 - 16
Increase recogrized n ixed assats 23,656 - 23656
Recogniced on subsidiary acguisitions - {3.568) {3.568)
Agiustment n respect of gnor years - {5465) {9.465]
Unwinding o diszount 245 - 249
Agjustment relaing to change in accouriting astirras (3.373) - {3,373)
c.* O Trans.ation 153 ‘ - ) 15
At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597 82,620

The decormriss oning orovisi

on is hela o cover future oklgations to return land on which there are

operanoral wind b:omass and scaar farrs, 1o their original condition. The amaounts are not expecied to be

utitised for i excess of 25 years
The Company had no provisions at 320 June 2022

Note 26 detalls the pnor period adjustments

I8 0 20 L0a o d T s Do e i s

Tre Greup and Company have the foliowing share capital:

Group 2022 2021
Allotted cailgd -up E“d fully pald o £'000 E OQO
1 2 7 g
616 624 011 26 ’i‘?DG 55.258; 161,662 145676
Ordirary shares of £0.10 each
Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fullypaid . ~_ £'e00 £'CQ0
(166220112021 1408 755 258)
1616622011 (2021 1,496755258) 161,662 145,676

Crdinary shares of £0.20 each

During the year the Sroup ssJed 119,866,754 (2022 1,501.169.278 ) ordingry shares of £0.10 each for an
aggraqgate nominal value of E1L287000 (2021 £150,120,000). CF the shares issuea during the year, total
consideraticon of £203,750,000 {2021 £2,316,695,000) was paid for the shares, giving rise to 3 prermwirm of
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

18,0005 Dunng the year the Group purchases il (2021 4444 020} of itz awn
001 Tota. consderation
was palg for the snares, giving rise 10 a premium of Eridd CZ‘Az £6 293,000

a1 wth ar aggregate norminat vatue of Enil (2021 £444.0

The Group has adopted predecsssor accourting prinaig-es as it was formed as cart of a group
recorstructon therefore the share capitai and share premium account are freated as f they had always
existed. Movernents in snare capital ansing botr before and after the restructure are reported as movements
in the Group share capitat

During tre year the Company issued 119 866,784 (2021 1,501,199 278 ardinary snares of £3 10 eack for an
aggregate nomnal va.ue of 11987000 (2020 £1 0001 Of tne shares issued curing the year, total
cons.aeratior of £203,750.C00 (2021 £ , s paia for the shares, giving rnse 1o a premum of
£19: 764, C00 (2021 £21£6,275.000). During the v the Groug parchased nit i.'ZOZ 4444 (J20) oF is owrs
ordirary shiares of £0 10 each wth an aggregate nominai vaide of £ril (2021 £444.0900), Total considerat on

of Eril (2021 £6,.844 008 was paid for the shiares, gfvmg nse 1o a premuet of £l {2 21 £0,392.000

35 OF ord.nary shares There are no reztinciors or tre distribation of dvisenrds and the

repayment of capta

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash fiow hedge reserve © uzed to record ransactons arsing fror the Group's casn flow

hedging arrangemants.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve ar ses from the d¥ference betweer the falir vaue of the shares issuss and ne bock

values of the subsiciaries acquired.

is

i N N N

Group
Note 2022 2021
£'000 £000
3,721 G570
Sale of subsidary undesakings ard acquisizon 57 _ (1,842)
of non-coctrallng mrerest
ctal comprenensve 1055 attnoutable 1o (6,622) (4,007)

o \*C(’}FT,

(2,901} 3721

{30 Juneg 2022

§
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gg :‘,.-1,:‘\‘~ R

A3 at 30 June 2022 there were no contingencies across the Groug or Company.

e T N N AR i

Carrying amoudnts of finaraal assets a-d habiltes :

Group Company

frestated) :

2022 2021 2022 2021

Group SR £000 . Fo00 . E000 £009. |

Carrying amount of fmanc]alassets :

Debt instrumeants measured at amos 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767 i

Mepsurad ar fair valde throlugh profit and oss - 5469 - -

Measured at fair vaiue through ather comprenersive Income w54409 o - S

Carrying amount of financial habﬂitles

Megsured at armortised cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16
Measurad at fair value through othor COMprenensive income - 42,772 - -

Mote 26 details the pror pericd adjustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instrurnents
The Group's Grat

K, credii ng

A

cial risk Martagarment seeks (o Minimiss the exposura @ markat ns

liguiity
ard cash fiow risk, and erergy marke. risk.

a) Market risk

Energy market risk

The energy sector is experiencing sigrificant turbulerce and trere s a nisk irat forecast ievels of ncome are
not achieved due to changes in wholesale energy prices, off-lake CoONTaCS or governmern: supsiaes,
Changes in Government policy, of requiator Infervention may resuit in -educec Income streams wittin tne
aroup due o sdditional ievies

Currency risk

The Group presents os consolidated fnandal staterrants in sterlng ard conaucts business in a wurber of
oner currenc es, prng ‘pa'ly 0 and Austratan dollar Cornsecuenty, 1ne Group s exposed to foregr
exchangs risk doe to

excharge rae movements, wrich affect the Groug's transactonal exoenses anz e
E

transiat-cn of earning and - sets of iTs ron-steriing cperatons

Transactional exposures

8]
m
s
@]
=
T

Transactional exposures arise from admiristrative a~a otrer expensa in curen an the Group's
precenmznosal currency (Sterling). The Group 2nters in o forward fors gn exchange cortracts and ‘oreign
exCnange swans o rmithgate 'hﬁ' '\th.m.e rate risk for certain foreign currency pavables ard recests. The
forward currency contracts and swaps are measured at far vaus, whior s determimed ssing valuaion
technigues that utlize chservabic mpufs Tre key Inputs used n valding the aenvatves are the forwars
exCrange rates for GBRAUD and GB2 EUR DOn 20 Jure 2022 the farr value of the foreign currency
contracts was an asset of Enil (2821, £6,4659030) ana a hatility of £rt (28021 £143 0004]

Translational exposures

Balarice snect trenslationa, exposuies anise on conscuadation on the ratransiation of the nalance shect of
ror-sterling operations ivto sterling, tne Group’s presentationa’ currency The level of exocsure is reviewed

by rmaragement and the potential foreign exchange miovemrert s wi‘.hxﬁ an accentable tever of risk and

therefore, typocally the CFO:JD S polcy to ot o activey hedge these excosures.

Interest rate risk

The Grouo has exposure (o fuctualo nterest rates o

roe porrosnngs Whizre the Group ecterss nto
borrocwImg arrangemenrts w i f oatng rate nterast, & swag arrangarmen s entercd N to fix a porton of
[}

the interest ir orger 1o Tt gate against s. Trie portion of interest 1o be fxeg <
C

aze oy Case basis. Manags rtcan wretrer 1o hedge accourt (or tnese

o)
=
s8]
3
=
[l
<
('\
(u
—~
iy
[t}
D]
[
0
]
=t
o]
3
[&)
1)
Il
o
an
=
[al
_Y
(T'

lected 0 aop vy hedge accounting for nterest
L rTature on the same date
of =

W years ans tre far

Price risk

Tre Grown § & short- o rredur-ter encer to the residential propecty rrarxer To tne axiert that there s
o

L of fnuze prs

that affects tre properties that e Grouc's Woars arg secued

tha the Growo may not recoup s full exposure Ths 5 vitgaed oy the short-term
alure of the .0ans and re consevatve evel OF wear 1o valug tral the Group is prepared o tend at
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Credit risk
Customer credit risk is mitigated nzhrough the Groug's credit control policies. which are in place to ensure

that oLy customers have an aporepriate credi mistzry and are monitored on an ongoing Dasis

c} Liquidity risk

Lisuidity risk are maraged oy ensanng thar sutficient cash s avaiiable to fund contnuing and future oparatons.

Liguidity risk ar ses on bark toans in place across the Grouo 2nd s managed through carsiul monitonng of
covenarts and sensibie levels of debt Borrowing 1s on a lorg-term basis, wnareas our revenue is receved
throughaut the vear, as welt as interast and rederrpuons on our shor-term loan ook Cash flow risi s
manased through ongoing cazh flow forecasturg o ensure receipls are suficient to meet liabilites as they
fall due.

B2 e e e

At the vear end tha Group ~ad capital commitments as foiows.

2022 2021
Group £000 £ OOO
Corura;_d tar m not proﬂdea 0 these finanzial statemonts 347,254 90 156

Undrawna facibties on loans to corrowars 173,600 92683

A 20 June the Group had total future mirirmum tease payrments under non-cancellable cperatng leases
as folows

2022 2021

Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buiidings
. e e £1000 goo0 LLLEQ0O Fooo,
— J ——
Ner later than ore year 8,707 661 8031 749
Later than one yvear and rot later than fve 31,627 726 30,369 1,686
Yedrs
Later 1180 v years ... 35668 T | 1855 9

135,998 1,387 157,332 2444

Tne Group had no other off-palance sheet arrangements (2021 none).

Under sect:ons 394A and 4794 of the Companies Act 2006, the parent company Fern Tradirg Limited has
guaranmeed all outstarding lizgbilities on these companies taxing the exempt.cn (o which the subsidiaries kst
on pages 79 to 90 were subject 1o at the 3C Jurne 2022 until they are satisfied in full Trese habilit-es total
£915m. Such guarantees are enforceable aganst Fern Trading Limited by any persor o whom ary such
latility is dug.

Tre Company had no capital or other cornmitments at 30 June 2022
oany
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

T L S R S T T S
O 11 Juiy 2022, Ferr Trading Deve'oprment Lirmited (FT0U a subsidiary of the Group
Carungton Po nt Heldoo Py Limved 1o Goopus Australia Master Trust A smaw profit of £820,000 was made

Crithe 1st of Decerber 2022, the Group acquired rights to a £25 cregl voucher and tre right to o
Ui

miohite leenses frorm "hree Strategic Cormectivity Agreemeant, thus maxng the first step towards

becoming an rronile virtual networic ooaratar

2 B FOO SO Lo AVt L

Jnder FRS 102 33 1A disciosures nead not ce gven of transachons entered i1mo henween two o more

uor s wholly cwned by

mrernbers of a Grouo, provided that any subsidary which 15 a party to the ransa

such a member,

During the year, fees of £77924 300 12021 E61,154OQ‘0) were “rarged o the Crous oy Ootopus

Invesiments L

mted,

wd party cuet

€.
Lmed was recharged legal ard orofess’

5]
2
unt

antinfikence over the ertity Goiopus irv
lng £1G155 12021 £16,000 by the Croup Al the
<t £5,500 2021 £219,000) was cutstaraing wh.ch s incloded in trade credaors

SUMNMent:

Vear end, an amao

The Grouo s ertitled o a profit share as a resulr Gf its myvestrrent 1in Tenao LLP, a related party due 1w key
rnanagement personnet in cormmaon In 2022 & share of prof equadcte £5 242,000 12021 E4La,.WJ\,-uJ has
pean ressgn.sed b‘y the Graun At the year end, the Group has an interest in the mempe
£35,452,000 {2021, £11,00C,0C0; and accrued income due oF £5,276 000 12021 £473.000)

The Group engages r lerndng activities which inc'ude balances provided 1o related paries Regaramna

loans of ES3,490,000 2021 £17 GO
71 E26.203,000) and deferred ncome of Lnil |
at year end. During the year imierest income of £7160,000 (7021 £2/58L.0C

Ji, accruea
e cutstarding
>° £394,000 (2021

entties win key managenent oersorr‘e\, 7 COrMMITION,
ncome of 215789 000 {2

53€.000) were recogrised in relation 1o thase loans,

Curing the year the Group acquired 9 reterve power cmmrfr = cortpanies matagaed by Octopus
Q C

Investments i ted, a ralated party Ses note 27 a) for detals of the cormpanies acau reg

Azat 20 June 2022 £mil (2021: 22950, 275) was owed to the Sompany Dy Sracken Trad ng lircited, a related
party by key management oersonne

Other than "he ansactions dsc.osed above. the Corrpany’s 0ther reiated pacty ransacuons were with &g

EB s e

inthe oo nior of the d reciors, these s no Jhmale Controlirg party or Garent Company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

DE o vl e

a) Group structuring review

We have conducted a review of pricr years” accourting treatrment of intercompany restructurirg. In this
review matagement identfed unamartised goodwill balances in relation 1o these transactions. We nave
adjusted the prev.ous years 1o reflect the imolementation of arrmoriisation backdared 1o when the relevant
transactons accurred Thne accurnulated impact for the gooawill amaeriization in the profit and loss “or 2021
waz £8m 12020: £5 3m) the movement of £2 7 has heeri restated trroughout the 2021 comparative
numbers. A summary of the mpact of the correction is provided pelow:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

{as stated} (restated)

Group £000 £000 £'000
Conchnt 582088 (5,335} 578653
Retsired earnings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) (restated)

Group ) o £000 £000 £°000

Cocdwill 602,711 (8.049) 594 6672
Retamad sarnings {122.920) 8,049 (115.871)

As part of the review Of tne intergroup restructuring menticned above, Mmanagement identifed one of the i
restruciures kad been ircorrectly accounted for in a sub sectior of the group. No further errors were
discovered In the review. The accumulated impact for goodwill amortisation in the grofit and oss for 2021
was £2 5m (20200 £1.3m), the movement of £1 2m has been restated throughout the 2021 comparaive
numoers. This irnpact to the 2020 opening retained earnings was offset by £2 1m writter back against bad ;
debt expenses. Managerent have corrected the identified error with the foilowing impact

Year ended Adjustments Year ended J
30 June 2020 30 June 2020 i
{as stated} (restated)
Group - £'000 £000 £/000
Coodwil R o 583.988 29183 554805
Reained sarnings 41,185 899 42,084
Dettors 842,549 (2,724} 839,825 3
Creditors arnounts falling due witnin one year (232.813) 496 (232,317)
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended 1
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021 !
(as stated) (restated) :
Group o £000  £'000 £000
Goorwll e 602,711 o706 574748
Retained carnings {123,920 (321} (124,241}
Debtors 600,726 (2,724} 598,002
Craditors amouris faling due witir one year (207,318} 496 (206,822)
Fixed asseis 1,551,170 30512 1,581,682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment
We nave concuctea a review of all consotdanon entries at subsect.ons of the group We have icentiiiedg an

error rewating 10 2019 when deferred tax adjustnents were ectered as a 2onsol dation entry and had

subsequently not been reversed We have chec<ed the tax per suns diary account and nave ensured that the

relevant naiances are correct. The error was posted at 3 consglicared leve: only and has now Geen carrected

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group "F‘OOO £'000 £000

Retained eamings 41,185 {4,764) 26421
Creditors amounts falling due warin one yoar (2328135 4764 (728,045}

This has a knock &

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated)

Groupﬂ . ‘000 £"OOD

[TE.

Retanoe earmirags (123.920] 4.764) (128.684)
Creditors, armannts flling due wikin one yoar {207,318} 4764 (202.554)

Ir prepanng the tax comaoutar ons (or 2022 the Group's tax adwisars have noticed an overlooked
assLMplon in previcus years 1ax consolidat-on calcuanorns Within the previously unrecogrised deferred tax

<,

ssets held win in ne group some were ava lable on a consclidated level to offser the Groug’s deferred tax
dabity Onoanindvideal comgeany basis tne ceferred tax in previows years had been correctly recoor sed. A
oart of these deferred assets are i relation © cash flow hadges held with n e groun wrich are accounted
for within giner comprehensive ncome he accumulated ‘mpact for the tax charge 0 tha probt and l0ss
for 2028 was £15m (2020, £15.3m) the movereant of 300k has oeen resated througnowt tre 2021

comparatve nembers
Asummary of treirrpact of the conrect.e s provided below,
Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)

Grquw ‘ ) £000 £’900 o E£'000 ]

Retaneo =amings 41,185 115.299] 25,586
JE resere 63,837 132,875 59,962
(26,484 19174

Cach foy

Cefarad tax prov

LIRTTECSO RGNS ES SRS B 6 ntan o SOT9TEERSR R s s T E DD AR B8 ke

{17.310)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended !
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021 §
(as stated)} {restated} !
Group £000 £000 £000
Cash flow hedge reserve 17,098 (2,115} 14,975
Deferred tax provisions (38,145} 17.212 (20.933}
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated}
Growp £'000 _E000 €000
Goodwll 583,988 {34,517} 549,471
Cettors 842,548 (2,724) 839,825
Fixed assets 1,346,655 20,512 1.377.167
Deferred tax provisicons (36,484) 19.174 (17,310}
Cash flow herdgs resene 63,857 (3.875) 59,962
Creditors amounts “alling due witn-n cne year (232,813} 5259 (227,554}
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated}
Group e £'000 £000 £000
gg'asnéaéavrrwqu o e h (123.920) (12,129) (136,049}
Goodwill 602711 {36,011 566,700
Debtors 600,726 {2.724) 598,002
Fixed assets 1,551,170 20,512 1,581,682
Dafarred tax provisions {38.145) 17212 120,933}
Casti low hedge reserve 17.058 (2,119) 14,979
Creditors: amourts faling due withir ene year (207 318) 5259 (202,059}
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a) Reserve Power acquisition
Or: 2 July 2021, the Croug acquired S reserve power sites throughk tne ourchase of 100% of the snare capital
for consideration of £18

The following tables summarise the consideration caid by the Group, the fair valus of tne assets acquired,
the | ak:lbes assumed gt the acquestion date

Consideration
Cash

Total consideration -

Details of the far valuz of the net asseis acauired and goodwil ansing are as foliows.

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£0060 £000 £000

Fixed assets 80,788 {283,553} £2.235
frace ana oomer eceyabies 294 - 254

Prenayrnoents 635 - 635

Casr ard cash enuivaients YASES - 7858
Trade and other crediiors (2,206} - 12.2040)

2,20
(58,816} - (5&.816

Loans
28,553

Net asse{s acqwred 7 (28553) M -

Totat consideration -

Goodwill resalting from the business combimation was nil

The conscudaied staterment of comprehensive income for the year includes [45 807 000 revenue and 2

profit after tax of £686,000 in respect of this acauizinarn.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Doveryard Limited acquisition

g Getober 2021 the Group acaured Coverya irrite dts subsdiary ugh the purchase
On 22 Getoper 2021, the Group acaured Caoveryard Limited and 1tg subs.diary torough the purchase of
100% of the share captta. for considerauon of £135,414,000

he foliow! sles summanse the consiceraton paid oy the Group, the far value of assets acgu’ ant
The fol ng tables ¢ narise the consiceraton paid oy the Group, the farr value of assets ured and

labiities assumed at the acguisttion dae

ansideraﬁtifm” s poon £'000

‘E;gh o o s 2. 8 3088 dndee vn 3o e o s B ummeoan” T1F L U EE AT T O ‘ 12‘377
Drrectly attributable costs 1037
Total consideration 13,414

Detals of the fair value of the net assets acquiren and goodwil ansing are as foilows:

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
n £000 o EO00 i EO00

‘H‘xed 3SSets 569 - 569

Trade ang other recevabies 52 - 52
Frepaymenis ana accrued incorre 183 - 153
Trade and other creqitors (467}

Net assets acquired o ww“2’a4;ww ) N ”m

Goodwil

Total consideration

Goodwill resuning from tre business cormbmaton was £E13.067.000 and has an estimated useful iife of 25
years, reflecting tne lifespan of the assets acquirec

The consoldated statement of comprehensive iIncome for the year includes £nil of revenue and a loss
before tax of £123,000 1n respect of this acquisition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

¢) Dulacca acquisition
On 27 August 2027, the Group 2cquiree Sulacca WE Hogco P Y Jtd and s three subsidianes through e
ourchase of 100% of the share capita: for consideration of £115.630,0C0,

The folowing tables summarise the consderation pac by the Group. the fair value of the assets acqurea,
3 Y ‘

es assurme at the acquisition date A fst of the entities acquired nchuged .0 note 79

Consideration AUD'000 Exchange Rate

CHP N8 B S S RS R s %iegz);;m - e 085
Directly attributable costs 1126 1.8504 545
Total consideration 218683 = 115680

Details of the fair value of the net assets accured and irtang bie ansing are as follows

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value

AUD'OOO  AUD'O00  AUDODO €000 E000 €000

% ¥ S OUTE REERE SEE T BRETA SaGERFRTRSAY MGXE XXM £rX SCADDUX % EXEXS B S EECTATXPRMES UAAXgERY FRESGES

107633 - 197,633 56537 ‘ - 565357
Trade and gthor recavables 10131 - 10,131 5,357 - 5,357
Cash and cash egavalents 102,072 - 103.072 54,525 - 54525
Accruals and aofoerred incore LO 952) - (16 9J2) (J ?9 ) - (‘: 793;
Net assets acquired 209 884 o 209 aa4 C 111028600000~ 111 026
ntangible i ST 8 799 T 4 634 )

Total ccmsideration 218 683 115 680

e3uling frorm the asset purchase was £4.654,000 and ras an esumated useful ife of 30y
f

> ifespan of the assels acguired

P

The corzoidaied statement of compreherive ncome for the yvear nowdes £r:l of revence and a loss after
tax of £2370C0 in respect of this acguisition
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d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition

On 3lanuary 2021, the Group acquired Zesec Assel Mangemert Limited a project sources for rooftop

s
£

sclar, througn the purchase of 100X of

the shiare capital for consideration of £4.765.000

Tre folowng tanles summanse the considerat:cn paid by the Group, the “ar value of assets acquired, ard

lamilities assumed at the acquisiton date.

Consideration

% & TE b aal B VUL T R UL MH PO WUMINTI WEEWFRST P U AN A 0% 4w [Ema—— HT SONRAH SRAY LB BARN WY K LRAY b R0 BN KA 0l K Sbhond oo dor i m +hoyobya s hudy

Cash

Deferreg corsideration -

Directly attrioutabie cosis

Total consideration

Cetais of the fair valle of the net assets zcguireo and goodwil arsing are as ‘cliows

Book Adjustments Fair

values vatue
£'000 E'000 £'000

Fixes as

Trade and other creditars
Trade and offer recenvatles
Cash ang cash eguvalents
Ciker loans

Net assets acquired
Coodwill

Total consideration

156
{574}
400

1015

955

Goodwil resuiting from tne business compinator was £3,810,G00 and has an extimated useful life of 10

years, reflecting the estimarted lfespan of the assets acquires

The consal.dated staterment of comprehensive income for the vear inciudes £198,000 of revenue and & loss
hefore tax of £494 000 in respect of this acquisition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e} Elivia Homes acquisition
On 23 May 2022, tre Group acqured Eivia Holairgs
100% of the share capstai ‘or consideration of £32

The followng tables summanse @ consderation palg by the Group. the fair value of a3
ashities assamed at the acqomuon date Alst of the entites acquired arerclndes innoe 29.

Cons:deratuon

C

Uirec h/ rrrm able coss

Total consnderatlon

St e e 20 e e o O T

ied and s suksidiar'es, through the curchase of

acquired, and

£000
30999
685

31,684

Dezails ¢f the far value of the rer asse!ls acquired and gooove b anzirg are as folows

Book Adjustments
values
SN £000 £'000

Hcd jrpl e s e - 41d e S
INEngiole assets 11757 -
hiock 69.933 -
“race anvl other cobtars 2.609 -
Casn and cashk ecavalorss 11603 -
Accruals and deferred incame (420} -

Provisions (530) -
Deferred tax 6,000 (1.400)
169 A53) -

Net assets acqmred - ] ) 31 533 (1 400)

|raf*93 d ,Uuer(_rf

I -
Gooowl

Total consideration

Fair
value
£ 000
11,767

69,339
2,609
11,603

{420)

(930)
4,600

(69 4‘23)w

31,684

Coodwil. res lting from the business combination was £1,557, 0 et mates usefu!

years, reflecting the lfespar of tn@ assets acguired

Cinrespeci of ins acguston

ife of 10

comorehensive incorre for the year ncludes reven.e of £25,022.050 and 3
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Our reported resuss are prepared in accordance with United Kingoom Accountng Stsr.aards inctudng
Financal Resorting Stancard 102, as deniied in e Financial Staternents starting on page fthe Annuat
Reoport. In measunng cJr performance, the financial measures that we use inciude those that have been

derved frorm our resoried results in order ta elirinate factors that distort yvear-on-year comparisons These
are considerad nor-GAAP fnancial measures.

Net debt

We provide net debt in addition to cash and gros: debt a3 a way of assessing ous overall cash postion and it
15 corrputed as follows

2022 2071
£'000 E'OOO

1044 218 8;71,918
3, 364 -

e RGO TR AN L AR KR AR B A L VAR AR R S R £ A BhA 2t ok} 2

Bank loans and cveardrafts

Other loans

Grossdebt 7 s0ass82 798

Cash at bank and m nand 1 (256 415) fl72 478]

Netdebt 793,167 699,440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 :
EBITDA |

Earmings before ir*terest, tax, decreciation and amortisaton {"E3ITDA" 15 calculated by adjusing profit after
tax for nierest, tax, depreciation ur-d amertsat or, N acdinon to ncome and expense: that do not relate ©

the day to day operations of tre Group. We provide EBITDA in addition to profit after tax as tallows us to

assess our perfarmarce witnout the effects of firancing and caotal expendiures,

The following table deta:ls the adjustments maage (o the reporied results:

{restated)
2022 2021

Note £'000 £'000

Pfoﬁt/aoss) f;;thé fmanc;alyear T *\,..31310 e - {31012‘ :
fatels| 1
Amortisation of ntargibie asgets ¢ 37,849 37704 ;
Imparmort of ritangblo assets 8 7913 ~ i
Deprecizlion of tangihie assets 2 101,802 $4,697
Interast aler anc srrmar expenses 53 33,554 36,067 3
Freepional reres 1,105 -
Tax 7 16,294 8,345 1‘
Less ‘
Income from ctrer fixed assat investrenis (5.249) (443} 1
Share of oparating profitr jont veniure - {1.755; ;
SroFt on disposadl of subs (29.5632) {28,568} ‘
Interest recevan e and similar incorne 5 (130) 1997}

EBITDA ' o 194,916 104,036 !

Note 26 detans tne pnor penod ad ustments

:
|
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

prst AR

Cetails of the subsidiary undertakings are as follows:

Name

»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»» R

ton Solar Energy Hoioimg Lmited™

Abbots Rip
Adalinda Salar 57V 1 Limited™
AgGriso-2 SARL?

Al Networks Limited”

Allpcints Fibre Limited®™”

Auchercarroch Energy Limited®”

ALguhide Lang Cormpary Limitea ™
pary

Avenue Solar Farm Limrated”
Barnury Power Lirnited™
Batisalars 5 SARL
Baticolaire 7 SARL®

Beettey Energy Limited™
Beighien Erergy Lirnitea’
Beirneun Wird Farm Ltd™
Bellhouse Ernergy Limited™
Birch Estate Solar Limited™
Blaby Soiar Farm Limited™
BMRG IOW Limited™
Bolam cnergy Limited”
Boornerang Erergy Limted
Boreas crergy Limitea”
Bratton Flerming Lirmited™

Breclk Soiar Limited"

Bryr Yr Odyn Solar Developrerts Holdings

Lirmited™

Bryr Yr Odyn Solar Developrments Limited ™

Bury Power imited”
Cadoxton Reserve Power Limited™
Calcias Energy Limited"™

Cark Lirmited®

Country of Class of
incorporation shares
o Srinary
LiK Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK QOrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
LUK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Ireland Ordinary

Holding activity

TR AR MR £ B g 180

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
160%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Haolding company

Fibre netwark
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Haolding company
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation

SRR
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Caswell Solar Farrn Limyied™
Cathkin Enargy Lirnted®™

Causilgey Lirrited™

y arid Infrastructure Limited

Cedar Energ

CEPE Barceronne SARLY

rL/

oe (Centrale Ecrvenne de
gie ce Larormbke) SARLT

Haut du Saule’

CEPL de |z Roche Quatre Rwvieres SAR
CEPE cu pays de St Se ne SARLY

CERS 2 A5

Chelson Meadow Erergy Limitec™
Zrisbon Solar Farm Holaimgs Limited ™
Crutterng Solar Two Liraned”

Cilowyr Erergy Limitens’

Ciann Farm Limited™

Clararmond Solar SRy 1 Limited™

CLP BDevelopments Limited”

CeBE Projects 2 Limitea”
CLPE Frojects 2 Umried”
CLPE Proects 3 wimited™
C

3T~ 1 Lnitedt
. --t ol
LPE RO Lirmite

CLPE ROC - 2 Lirmted”™

Centrale Entienne de Froduction d Energie s
Grandbois SARL

Y VTR B s, ¢ 1 27 st

UK
UK
UK
UK

France

France

France

France

France
France
France
France
France
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of

share:

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordhinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Principal

L. Molding activity ..

‘ 100% Ernergy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
1006% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Erergy generation
100% Ernergy generation
1007% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Erergy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Holding company
100% Erergy generation
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Dormant company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Dormant company
100% Provjsw’on of OGM

services

100% Darmant company
100% Dormant company
100% Holding company
100% Holding cormpany
10C% Holding company
100% Holding ccmpany
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
150% Erergy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

CLPE ROC ~ 3A Limmitad™
CLPE ROC - 4 Limmited™
CLRE ROC — 44 Limited™
Ciyne Power Limited™”
Coisterworth “nergy Limitea™
Cennen Bridge Energy LUmited™
Cetespach Energy Lirrited”

Cour Wind Farm (Scotland) Lirnited™”

Crapnel Farrm Lime ted”

Crayfern Homes (Soutn Coast) imiteg!

Crayferm Limitgd™?

Crayfern sunley (Sin‘oud) Limited!*
Craymarsh amited”

Cressing Sofar Farm Limited”
Culvery Fower Limited™

Cynon Power Limiteg™

Cafen Reserve Fower Limited™
Cairy House Solar Limites™
Deepdale Farm Sotar Limnited™
Doveryard Limitea™
Crapers Farm Limited”™

Dulacca Energy Project Co PTY Lod*#

Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Lt

Dulacca Energy Project Holdeo Co PTY Ltdl?

Culacez WF Hodeo PTY Lig=2
Dyflry= Srodyn Lirmited™
Eaknng Lirnited™

Elecso. Camargue SARL®
Flecsol France 7 SARL?
Elecsol France 11 SARL®
Elecsoi france 15 SARL®

4

Elecso: “rance 19 SARL

SR R G G0 R ke w2506 it

Country of
incorporation

s Bt 0, B A

LK
LK
LK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

LK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
UK

UK
France
France
France
France

France

Class of
sbﬂres
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Chdingty
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Crdinary

Crdinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

e o N R AT TR

Principal

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

T TR T FARNROE MO NS S L

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Deveopment of
ouilding projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
ouilding projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Molding company
Energy generation
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Ernargy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares Holding activity )
-sal Frars France Ordinary 1G0% Ernergy generation
Elecsot Framce 22 SARL® Frarnice Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Eiecsol France 25 SARLS France Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Elzcsol Franca 22 SAR? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsal Frarce 41 SAR(® France Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Elersol Haut var SARL® France Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Elics Energy 2 France SAT? France Ordinary 1G0% Holding company
Elos Energy 2 - rmited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elice Fnergy 2 France SAS7 France Ordinary 160% Holding company
Elos Energy Hold ngs 2 Limited™” UK Ordinary 10C% Holding company
Elics Frcrgy 758 3 dirmned” UK Crdinary i00% Holding company
Elas Eacrgy =oldinags Lmited” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Elioe Renewable Erergy Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
—
Elvia Develonment frarce Limites UK Ordinary 100% ,oﬂ.strgct\oqof
domestic buitdings
©rdinary Financsl services
E g Holdirgs Lirmited UK Deferred 106% ' Zee
= holding comparzes
Preference
elivia s (Cenira: Liried's UK Ordinary 100% Comstrgctﬁor“t O.f
domestic puildings
. 1y 5 fi
Elwvia Haornes (Dornant 2) Lrniteg™! UK Qrdinary 1G0% Cf)nstru_c |or? of
domestic buildings
- . . . Construct|
Eivia Horres (Grarge Road; Lrotea?’ UK Cirdinary 100% -On® ’ﬁ‘.r“oh O.f
domestic buildings
Elivia Homes {Netley) Linmited™! UK Crdinary 100% ngelopmeﬁt of
building projects
Elvia Homes (Southerns Limited™? UK Ordinary 100% Construct:orlo.f
domestic bulidings
£ vabomes Surg eny Limited®s UK Crdinary 100% COHS{[UCtTOqO.f
domestic puildings
. Ve it of
Elvia Homes Lir ceo’ UK Ordinary 100% Developrent o
’ bullding projects
) . , B Development of
Elaig MNortr Lire ted { dinar; (874 ;
Elva Nortr Lir r2d UK Qrdinary 106 building projects
Construction of
o . restic build
Ervia Oxford Lre e UK Qrdinary 10G% gomestic bul ngs
Buying and selling of
own real estate
£l 3 Soutn Lrnned! UK Ordimary 100y Sonstructon of

domestic buiidings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares Holding activity

Construction of
domestic buildings

Elivia Southerr Limsted!® UK Ordinary 100% Buying and selling of
own real estate
Eilcombe Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Energy project
Energy Fower Resources Limiled™ UK Ordinary 100% ?ﬂe:féogz:i:i and
services
EPR Ely Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
EFE Eyve Limued™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Clanford Limited”™ UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
EPR Renewabie Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
EPR Scotland Lirmted®” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
ESR Thetford Lirmted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Euzayptus Energy Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Eucalyptus Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Feltwail Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ferr Erergy Cour Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Farn Zrergy Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 1002 Holding company
Ferm Snergy Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Heiding company
Fern Zrergy Wind Howings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern mibre Lim.ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Fern Healthcare Hoidings Limited™ UK Crdinary 10G% Holding company
Fern infrastructure timied” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Renewable Energy Limiteg” UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Fern Rooftop Solar {A] Lirnitad™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Fern Rooftop Solar (BED)” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rochtop Sclar (Zestec) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Tradirg Developrnent Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
tern Trading Grous Limited UK UK 10G% Helding company
Fern UK Power Developments Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fiprophes Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Suppty of fertiliser
Four Burrows Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation

Fraisthorpe Wing Farm Lirreted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Cuganet rmited™

Glenchamper Wind Energy Lirited ™
Cirange Wirg Far Lrrood
CGuardbrde SP z .ot

Farbourne Fower Limited”

Hayrna<=s- (Mournt Mib _td™

Hayrnaker (Natewood) Hoidings & rmifsc™

Faymaker (Natewood) Ltg™
Heymaker (Cadands) Aowings Smrtec”™
Haymaker {Oakdanags) Lid”
Fere Power 2 Lrnited”

Helr Power Lirped”

FHighor <nacp Farm Limited™
Hdi Eng Farr Limried”
Hoiiamoo: Limited™

FLll Beserve Power Limite™
Horsit SPYV 1 Limted”
Imimngnarn Sower Liroad™
Irpeell Powver Lirmitad™

Jarmson Roac Erergy Lirnitez™
Jurass.c Fibre Foldirgs Limited™

Jurassic F bre Lim ted

Hur Power iriteg”

Lar gan Power wmies”

Country of
incorporation

Class of
sha“re‘s

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK

Poland

LK
UK
UK
iJK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crcinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding
w0o%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%

Principal
activity

T T PhAE R TR - -

Dormant company

Fibre network
procduction

Fibre netwaork
production

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Holding cempany
Erergy generztion
Holding company
Erergy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
tnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Halding company

Fibre netwaork
production

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
produchon

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principat
Lt A wincorporation shares ~ Holding activity =~ ..
Lovecean Lirnitec™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lurrunance Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy genseration
M1Z Sottons Limited”™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Manstor Thorme Limrted” UK Orcinary 1C0% Energy generaticn
March Engrgy Lirmted™ UK Dhdditiary 100% Energy generation
Marder Powser Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Marley Thatch Sotar Limmed” UK Crginary 100% Energy gereration
Meadows Farm bimted” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Melcourn Solar Lisnited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy genearation
Meton LG Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Meitan LG Holding Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton LG ROC Lirited” UK Ordinary  100% égﬁ;;e:j’”g
Melton Renewable Energy (Holdings) Limmiteg™ UK Grdinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewable Energy Newro Limiten™ UK Orginary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewable Energy UK Limited LUK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Mitl Hill Farrm Solar Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Mingay Farm Helding Limsted™ UK Crdinary 1G0% Holding company
MSP Decoy Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
MSP Strete Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
MEP Tregassow Lmited” UK Crdinary 160% Eriergy generaticn
MTS Hatchlanas Solar L™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Nevern Power Limited™ UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
Mews Row Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generaticn
Newlands Sclar Limited”™ IJK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ninnis Farm bimiteg” UK Grdinary 100% Energy generaticn
Mortn Perrott Fruit Faren Limited® UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Mortawicn Power Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Notos Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Cgmare Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cldhalt Energy Recovery Holdings Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Cne Ashford MHealthcare Limited UK Ordinary 89% ?;C;Ytiilé};glervices
One Hatheld Hospita: Limited UK Ordinary 0% Provision of

healthcare services




4 | FINANCIAL STATE

MED

ey oy

FS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

ht s e e en FTT RR CEEA A s anpaaaae %) SEEEERY

e Heazlthcare Partrners Limited

Orta Wedgehill So ar Howdings Lirited”

Orta Wedgehil Sotar Limited™

Palfreys Bartor Limited”

Farciau Hold ngs Limetec™

Farcial Lirmited”

ark Broadbard Lirniteg™

Pezrmat Solar 2 od”

Puchiorg ([Condover Airfieid & Stockbatchy

Lrnreq

Fitts Farm Lmiteg”

Forthios Solar Limited”

Fyms Lane Solar Lid”

Cuesns Farc Road Drergy _mited”

Rangeford Care Dimied”

rangefora Chettoey Limitea™

Rangeforog Crrencester Limited”

Raageford Dorkerg Jmited™

Rangetcra Helding

s

_mitend’

Rangeford Fickenng wm es’”

HETol

Rargeforg RAP LM

Holding activity

Country of Class of
incorporation shares &
UK Ordinary 85%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 10C%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 1067
LK Crdinary 100%
UK Qrdinary 100%
UK Ordmary 100%
LK Qrdinary 100%
UK QOrdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 160%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK COrdmnary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary i00%
UK Crdinary 100%

Principal

©TORARY LAY pr e T BT

Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Erergy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirement village
developrnant

Retirerment vikage
development

Raetirement village
developrnent

Holding company

Retirernent village
development

Retirerment vilage
development

Holding company

Retirement village
development

Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Fibre netwwork
procduction

I
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

o e S i e S € 3R BB S BT LD R 6 h e h B ) e B

Srgrug Holamgs Limeterd™

Sngrug Lirmeted”

o

ix Hlls Lare (Ragdalel Limited™
Skelbrooke Energy Limitea™

Stauchtergate Limited”

Snetiericr Renewalle Power ~uels Limited™

Snettertor Renewable Power Holdings Limited™

Snetiericn Rerewalble Power Limiteg”
Solsr U908 SARLS
Salarn SPOL SARL®
Solard SPO2 SARL?

Sotarh SFO4 SARL®

[¥al

o POS SARL?

el

[l
o

M

Q)

w

nlarfl 5FO8 SARL?

Solarf SPLG SARLY

Southcombe Farm Limited™

St Asaph 2ower sirited”

Steadfast Parkhouse Solar Limited™
Steadiast Rudge Solar Ltg”
Steadfast Shipton Belinger Solar Limeted™
Stetlar Power Lirnited™

Stoneyvhill Zrergy Limited®

Sulis Energy Limitea™

Surnmerston Erergy Limited®™

Surley Crayfern Lavant LLP'
Swish 7ibre Cortractng Limited®
Swash Fibre Lamited®

Swish Fibre Metwaorks Ltd®
Swish Fibre Services Limited®

Swisn F-bre Yorksiure®

Swish Trading Limited™

Country of Class of Principal
jgcorporation shares . Holdmg activitym ‘
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary  100% fu‘ﬁp'y of biomass
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 160% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK NA 50% NA

UK Ordinary  100% Sr%rsu’leﬂxork

UK Crdinary 80% Holding company
UK Crdinary  100% ;Jrf§u1f§;0rk

UK Ordinary 80% Sggur::?iz‘frk

UK Ordinary  100% Erzrsu:‘ig‘f'k

UK Crdinary 80% Holding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name
TGC ‘~c'v 10? Limited™

TGC So'ar 107 Lirmteg™

—

G Solar 83 Limited™

The Fern Power Cormpany Limited”™

The Holl'es Sclar Farm Limited™
Thoresby Estate (Budby! Limited
lelingnam Powesr L ted™

Todhills Energy Limmited™

Trecdowr Far Liereited™”
Turves Solar bimaed”
LKSE 15 So.ar Limited

United Minos Eneray Lirited”

VCSE L™

Veotoria So.at bmed”
Y orers Energy Limited
Witrift Lirritea™
vorafrance 01 SARL®
Voliafrance (5 SARL®
Voiafrance 13 SARLY

vortafrar ce SAR!LS

Wassweck Cresn Lirmireg”

Westwooe Power Lirmited™

Weztwood Solar crnited”

naheBREERTY S — PR

Wadsw Ok Green Property Sorvecet Lrrited”

Country of Class of
Vlncorporat:on shares

UK Ord;ruaw
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordingry
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
Uk Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordmary
France Ordimary
France Ordinary
France CQrdinary
France Crdinary
UK QOrdinary
USA Crdinary
UK Ordinary
Uk Crdinary
UK Ordinary
1K Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

Principal

Holdmg actnnty

160%
10G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10G%
100%
100%

100%

100%

160%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

[rr—

Erergy generatlon
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Ernergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre netwaork
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Retirement village
operator

Service charge
admiristrator

Energy generation
Holthng cornpary
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Erergy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

N s e o ATICOTPOration  shares Holding activity e
Wetherden Ensrgy Limited” UK o Ordiﬁé;y - ‘lOO% Energy generation
Wharf Power Lirnted”™ LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Whidden Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Whinney Hill Erergy Limeted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wircelle Solar Holangs Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Haolding company

Wo vermampion Power Lig™ LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft wing Farm Limited™” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bradford Umiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Frnergy generation
WSE Hullavingtor Hiold ngs Limiteg”™ UK Crdinary 106% Holding comparny
WESE Hullavingtor: Uirited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
YWEE Pare wal Lim ted™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyce Drove Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Zester Asset Managemert Lirnited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date ‘
Fern Rooftop Solar (BBC) Limited o o 08/08/2022
Cuckao Iaternet Ltd 31/08/2022
Vitrifi Dugitai Limited 13/07/2022
406 Lirnitad 22111/2022

Subsidiares exermnpt from audit by vrive of s480A of the Companies Act 2006
“Subsidiaries exempt from audit Dy virtue of $4/9A of the Cormpanies Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dlssolved or sold during the  year and up unt:l s:gnmg o l'iate

Bemqeur HLJIJI .é;s Lmtg, ciouin- SRR s o 20/07/2&1
Ridge Wind Acquisit:on Limites 20/07/2021
Ferr Energy RdgeWird Acguisit ons Lim.ted 14/09/2021
Ferr Ernergy RidgeWind Ho dings Jmited 21/0G9/2021
Ferr Energy Partnerships Hold:ings Lirnited 21/09/2021
Fraisthoree iHoloing) Lur ited 29/03/2022
DY Oidhall Erergy Recovery Limited 13/09/2022
Comm2l Lt 150572022

Dartingtor Powrt —oldco Pty Liriied 08/07/2G22
Darungior Paint Solar Farm Pry Limitea 08/C7/2022
Darlingior Point Subholdca Pty imted 08/C7/2022

Nordic Power Dav

ioprnent Lirited 2371272021

Yoynnkangas Wind fanm Oy 23/12/2021
Saunamas Wino Farm Oy 2371272021

Tre regaterad cffice of all comparies listed agcve is at 8th Floor, 33 Holworn, London, England, ECIN 247

except for those set out below
1w Grzybowska 2/29 00-131 Warsaw, Polana

2 Pinsert Masors LLP Capital Sguare, 58 Mornson Sreet, Eainburg-, Scotland, FH3 BBP

Regent Sireet Glasgow, G2 AP
4. 2Z rue Anhonze ce Neuvlle 75017 Parg, “rance

5 &th Fisor, 2 Grand Canat Square, Duoun 2, D02 AZ42, irelang

£ The Carrage —ouse, Stat'on Works, Srat on Road, Cavercon, Warwc-shre, Lnted Kingdom, CV325 8PE

7. Zone ndustriste de Coorieee 115 Rue Du Moureiet 84000 Av gnon, France

8 13 Sauspury Place, Lonaon, England, W2H 1R

S n Trust Compary, Corporation Trast Center, 2209 Crance Sueer, Wilmingtion 19805,
10. Court, 26 Castle Terrace, EZinnurgh, Scotlano, EX1ZEN

1L Apouo HMouse, Mercary Far< Wycomoe Lane, Woobura Greer, don Wycomee, frgland, HPLD GH-
12 _eve. 23 101 Colins Srreet, Meilboorme, Vicior 2, 3000 ALcstralia

15 Beavnfort Court Zgg ~a m Lane, {ngs wargiey, berfordganre, WEHE 8LR

14 7-8 Swratford Place, London, Zngand, WiC 1Av

The cirectors believe tnat the Zarryir s vaiue 0f Tre nvastments 5§ supponted by ther anderiy g net assels




51 APPENDIX - SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern’'s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Limitect s an untisied company. Every month, our Board of Directors agress a price at which it
will be wiling ta iszue new shares The share price is unaudited.

Tre Agures he.ow irclude the stare price of the previous parent (now “ern Trading Group Limited) as weil
as s entity

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited
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Performarce is calculated based on the sate price for Fern's shares at 2 Jure eacn year The share price is
nct subject to audit by Brnst & Young LLP

annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance
Jure 2021-22 ) 9.91%

Jure 2025—21 4.87%

Sume 201920 0.33%

June 2018-19 6;23%

June 2075-16 - ) | 383%

June 20.1.3—1-4 | - o - . - :';.7-2%

jume 20i2—13 - - ‘ o ) 397% )

Jurner 2011-12 7 | - - 1.02%

Source, Octopus investments Limited, 2 June 2022
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Directors and advisers
Directors
PSS Latham
K3 Wolley
PG Barlow
Artbur gppoirted 1 July 2022)

Company sscretary

Ociwopus Cerpany e Limitao
Lo g ry numbey
126015726

Forward-looking statements

Thic Annuatl Repo
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ne giver tnat any o
activities shoule not
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contams certan forward-lo
rmarce and future evernts or Jevelo
eciations of managemenrt and are subject to assump: ong, nsks and uncertain

10 factors that are oeyond the contro” of tne Company Accordingly, -
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DMATION

Ragistered office

&:h Fioor, 23 Holborn,
London, Engand ECLN 24T

independent auditors

Ernst & Yourig LP
Bedford House,
16 Bedford Street,
Belfast 372 70T
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